
 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
Agenda 
 
 

Date Tuesday 13 June 2017 
 

Time 6.00 pm 
 

Venue Lees Suite, Civic Centre, Oldham, West Street, Oldham, OL1 1NL 
 

Notes 
 

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST- If a Member requires advice on any 
item involving a possible declaration of interest which could affect his/her 
ability to speak and/or vote he/she is advised to contact Paul Entwistle or 
Lori Hughes at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 
 
2. CONTACT OFFICER for this agenda is Lori Hughes Tel. 0161 770 5151 
or email lori.hughes@oldham.gov.uk  
 
3. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - Any Member of the public wishing to ask a 
question at the above meeting can do so only if a written copy of the 
question is submitted to the contact officer by 12 noon on Thursday, 8 June 
2017. 
 
4.  FILMING - The Council, members of the public and the press may 
record / film / photograph or broadcast this meeting when the public and 
the press are not lawfully excluded.  Any member of the public who attends 
a meeting and objects to being filmed should advise the Constitutional 
Services Officer who will instruct that they are not included in the filming. 
 
Please note that anyone using recording equipment both audio and visual 
will not be permitted to leave the equipment in the room where a private 
meeting is held. 
 
Recording and reporting the Council’s meetings is subject to the law 
including the law of defamation, the Human Rights Act, the Data Protection 
Act and the law on public order offences. 
 

 MEMBERSHIP OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 
 Councillors Dean, Goodwin, McLaren (Chair), Toor, Williams, Williamson, 

A Hussain and J Larkin 
 

 

Item No  

1   Appointment of Vice Chair  

 The Overview and Scrutiny Board is asked to appoint a Vice Chair for the 

Public Document Pack



 
 

Municipal Year 2017/18.  The Vice Chair will chair the Overview and Scrutiny 
Board meeting in the absence of the Chair. 
 

2   Apologies For Absence  

3   Declarations of Interest  

 To Receive Declarations of Interest in any Contract or matter to be discussed at 
the meeting. 

4   Urgent Business  

 Urgent business, if any, introduced by the Chair 

5   Public Question Time  

 To receive Questions from the Public, in accordance with the Council’s 
Constitution. 

6   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 14) 

 The Minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Board held on 14th March 2017 are 
attached for approval. 

7   Minutes of the GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool Meeting (Pages 15 - 30) 

 The minutes of the GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool meeting held on 10th February 
2017 and 10th March 2017 are attached. 
 
The Board is requested to note the minutes. 

8   Minutes of the Health Scrutiny Meeting (Pages 31 - 38) 

 The minutes of the Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee held on 21st February 2017. 
 
The Board is requested to note the minutes. 

9   Minutes of the Performance and Value for Money Select Committee (Pages 39 - 
42) 

 The minutes of the Performance and Value for Money Select Committee held on 
8th December 2016 are attached. 
 
The Board is requested to note the minutes. 

10   Appointments to Outside Bodies and Co-opted Members for Education Matters 
(Pages 43 - 44) 

11   Overview and Scrutiny Board Work Programme for 2017/18 (Pages 45 - 50) 

 The Board is requested to note the Overview and Scrutiny Board Work 



 
 

Programme for 2017/18. 

12   Children's Social Care 'Getting to Good' Improvement Plan Update (Pages 51 - 
56) 

13   Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) Update (Pages 57 - 96) 

14   Updating the Corporate Plan (Pages 97 - 106) 

15   Overview and Scrutiny Draft Annual Report for 2016/17 (Pages 107 - 122) 

16   General Exceptions and Urgent Decisions (Pages 123 - 124) 

 The Board is requested to note the decisions that have been taken under Rule 
16 or 17 of the Council’s Constitution since the last meeting of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Board held on 14th March 2017. 
 
If a detailed explanation is required and an officer is to attend the meeting to 
provide further information, please contact Constitutional Services by 12:00 noon 
on Thursday, 8th June 2017. 

17   Key Decision Document (Pages 125 - 134) 

 The Board is requested to note the Key Decision Document. 

18   Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) Forward Plan (Pages 135 - 
140) 

19   Joint GMCA/AGMA Executive Board Forward Plan (Pages 141 - 146) 

20   Date and Time of Next Meeting  

 The date and time of the next Overview and Scrutiny Board will be Tuesday, 18th 
July 2017 at 6.00 p.m. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 
14/03/2017 at 6.00 pm 

 
 

Present: Councillor McLaren (Chair)  
Councillors Dean, Garry, Toor, Williams, Williamson, Cosgrove 
and A Hussain 
 

 Independent Members: C. Maude 
 

 Also in Attendance: 
 Lori Hughes Constitutional Services 
 Dami Awobajo Head of Business Intelligence 
 Jennifer Barker Strategy, Partnerships and Policy 

Manager 
 Rosie Barker Service Development and Support 

Manager (Waste Management) 
 Jon Bloor Head of Enterprise and Skills 
 Dominic Coleman Principal Policy Officer 
 Andy Collinge Head of Education Support Services 
 Neil Crabtree Head of Service - Public Protection 
 Gill Hoar Head of Access and Inclusion 
 Helen Gerling Interim Director, Commercial and 

Transformational Services 
 Neil Hoskinson Headteacher of Virtual School 
 Fran Lautman Customer Development Manager 

 

 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Goodwin. 

2   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

There were no declarations of interest received. 

3   URGENT BUSINESS   

There were no items of urgent business received. 

4   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   

There were no public questions received. 

5   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING   

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Board held on 17th January 2017 be approved as a correct 
record. 

6   MINUTES OF THE JOINT GMCA AND AGMA SCRUTINY 
POOL MEETINGS  

 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Joint GMCA and AGMA 
Scrutiny Pool meetings held on 9th December 2016 and 13th 
January 2017 be noted. 

7   MINUTES OF THE HEALTH SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE 
MEETINGS  

 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Health Scrutiny Sub-
Committee meeting held on 8th November 2016 be noted. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 6



 

 

8   REPORT ON THE WORK OF THE VIRTUAL SCHOOL   

Consideration was given to a report of the Headteacher of the 
Virtual School which provided information on the current work of 
the Oldham Virtual School and included the role and purpose of 
the Virtual School and the year on year comparison of results of 
Looked After Children. 
 
The role of the Virtual School Headteacher was “about 
championing the educational needs of the children looked after 
by the authority, monitoring and tracking their educational 
progress as if, in fact, they all attended a single school”.  Local 
authorities had a duty under the Children Act 1989 to safeguard 
and promote the welfare of a child looked after by them.  In 
2012, the All Party Parliamentary Group for Looked After 
Children and Care Leavers recommended making the Virtual 
School Headteacher post statutory and this was included in the 
Children and Families Bill in 2013. 
 
The key responsibilities for the work of the Oldham Virtual 
School were outlined in the report.  The report highlighted that 
the Virtual School ensured that schools, social care 
professionals and corporate parents worked together to 
champion the educational needs of Looked After Children.  The 
Oldham Virtual School headteacher was supported by a Life 
Chances Team.  The Corporate Parenting Panel and Children‟s 
Assurance Group received regular reports and supported the 
development of the Virtual School. 
 
The report also highlighted: 
 

 Personal Education Plans and the new Oldham ePEP; 

 Pupil Premium Plus; 

 Changes to the Virtual School Approach from April 2017 
onwards; 

 Current Looked After Children Cohort Performance; 

 Key Stage 2 Pupil Performance 2016; and 

 Key Stage 4 Pupil Performance 2016. 
 
Members sought and received clarification on the number of 
pupils attending schools outside the borough and the financial 
implications.  Members were informed the pupils remained the 
authority‟s pupils, there were no cost implications if attending 
another authority‟s schools, but costs were incurred at some 
residential or special schools. Every effort was made to bring 
students back within the borough. However, in some cases 
there were particular reasons for the students to be at a 
distance. 
 
Members sought clarification on the 20% increase and asked 
what could be done to be judged good or better.  Members were 
informed that a new online Personal Education Plan (ePEP) 
would be launched shortly and every PEP would be subject to 
quality assurance.  In the quality assurance exercise, 60% of Page 2



 

PEPs has been judged as being good or better.  The target was 
for 80% to be at least good.  The Virtual School provided regular 
training for social care staff and designated teachers to further 
improve the quality of PEPs.   
 
Members sought clarification on other vulnerable groups.  It was 
clarified that analysis was done year by year and actions plans 
would be put into place for underperforming cohorts.   
 
RESOLVED that: 
1. the report and information on the Work of the Virtual 

School be noted. 
2. an update on the work of the Virtual School be brought 

back to the Overview and Scrutiny Board in 12 months‟ 
time. 

9   OLDHAM LOCAL AUTHORITY POLICY AND PROCESS ON 
FREE SCHOOLS  

 

Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Education 
Support Services on the Local Authority Policy on Free Schools.  
 
The provision of new school places in Oldham would 
necessitate the establishment of a number of Free Schools over 
the duration of this Parliament.  It was important that the Local 
Authority had maximum influence over the choice of 
trust/sponsor for every Free School established in Oldham.  The 
policy on Free Schools outlined what criteria the local authority 
insisted upon for any provider who hoped to run a Free School 
within Oldham.  This included working in partnership with the 
local authority and working with the Oldham Education and 
Skills Commission for the development and improvement of the 
education offer for parents, young people and the community.  
 
The principle issue related to Free Schools was the track record 
and capacity of the Trust to establish the school and the 
acquisition of suitable buildings and land. The final approval to 
run Free Schools was not with the local authority.  However, the 
local authority would be consulted and could exert a degree of 
influence. 
 
The advantage of having a comprehensive Free School Policy 
was that such a policy would be the basis for establishing local 
authority support for Trusts seeking DfE approval and enabled 
the local authority to shape the provision of education in Oldham 
in line with its corporate objectives.  The currently policy was 
adopted in December 2016. 
 
Members sought clarification on the track record of sponsors 
and were informed that that the authority had a good working 
relationship with the Regional Schools Commissioner and only 
those sponsors who met the criteria would be approved.  The 
final decision was with the Regional Schools Commissioner.  
Members sought clarification that if there was a good sponsor 
could they be approached to do another one.  It was explained 
that multi-academy trusts were being developed and the focus 
had been on smaller arrangements. Page 3



 

 
RESOLVED that: 
 
1. The report and the information provided at the meeting on 

the Local Authority Policy on Free Schools be noted. 
2. An update on the Free School Policy be brought back in 

twelve months‟ time with the Academies update. 

10   DRAFT OF INCLUSION POLICY FOR OLDHAM   

Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Inclusion 
which outlined progress on the Inclusion Review, the draft 
Inclusion Policy and details of consultation and engagement on 
the draft policy with stakeholders and partners. 
 
The Oldham Education and Skills Commission had identified a 
number of key themes which the Commission believed would 
form the building blocks which would lead to transformational 
change.  Recommendation Four highlighted the need to address 
the high level of exclusions in the secondary phase and that all 
partners should work together through existing arrangements 
and via the new Oldham Education Partnership, to design and 
commit to new ways of working in order to tackle the issue.  An 
Inclusion Review had been undertaken and the outcome was 
captured in the draft Inclusion Policy. 
 
The Commission recommended that through existing 
arrangements and a new education partnership, schools design 
and commit to: 
 

 A new approach as to how exclusions and managed 
moves were brokered across the borough; 

 Improving early identification; 

 Sharing information/data and joint research/analysis; 

 Increasing focus on preventative measures; 

 Availability of social, emotional and psychological 
support; and 

 Incentivising inclusion. 
 
The Council was currently leading on an Inclusion Review on 
the effectiveness of inclusive education provision/practice 
across Oldham with a view to the development of an Inclusion 
Policy and subsequent Inclusion Strategy for implementation in 
the Borough.  A project group had been established in 
September 2016.  The draft Inclusion Policy had been co-
produced with input from a range of key stakeholders and 
partners.  It was intended to develop an Inclusion Strategy 
following the endorsement of the Policy.  The strategy would set 
out various projects and initiatives that would be required from 
2017 to 2020. 
 
Members were informed the illustrations contained within the 
document were visual minutes taken during the development 
day.  The Youth Council had given good feedback. 
 

Page 4



 

Members commented on the link between inclusion, austerity 
and deprivation and how that could be changed.  Members were 
informed that partnership working was key which included 
Healthy Young Minds, Early Help and working with 
neighbourhood teams and looking at the whole family and 
community.  Progress would be measured during the three year 
programme. 
 
Members asked what would be seen as success and what 
reductions were anticipated.  Oldham was currently in the 
bottom quartile, it was hoped to reduce exclusions to zero by 
2020 and other ways to be found for children to be included 
without being at risk.  A number of issues from the review had 
already been implemented.  Members sought clarification if 
there were any „hot spots‟ and were informed that there were no 
„spikes‟ in behaviours.  Exclusions were not made lightly and 
only in the best interests. 
 
Members commented on increasing the involvement of parents, 
not just at presentation or parents‟ evening.  Members were 
informed that this was in the policy along with the importance of 
community.  Schools were of the same view as well as the 
importance of early identification and intervention. 
 
Members sought and received clarification on the Alternative 
Provision (AP) free schools.  It was explained that not all 
children engaged in mainstream curriculum.  The AP school 
would offer the mainstream curriculum as well as offer a 
therapeutic aspect which addressed health and wellbeing and 
was linked to practical vocational activities.   
 
Members sought clarification on the overview of the policy by 
the Best Start in Life Partnership and were informed that this 
was as sub-group of Health and Wellbeing.  The strategy would 
be set out as a programme with 10 projects within it. 
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
1. The rationale for the undertaking and progress of the 

Inclusion Review led by the Council be noted. 
2. The comments on the draft Inclusion Policy as a key 

outcome of the review be noted. 
3. The details of the consultation and engagement on the 

draft Inclusion Policy be noted. 
4. That further information be provided to the Overview and 

Scrutiny Board on the Best Start in Life Partnership 
overview and the establishment of the AP Free School. 

5. That a further update be provided on the implementation 
of the Inclusion Strategy in twelve months. 

 

11   SELECTIVE LICENSING SCHEME - UPDATE   

Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Public 
Protection which provided an update on the progress of the 
Selective Licensing Scheme.  
 Page 5



 

Selective Licensing was a tool that local authorities could use to 
deal with areas where there was low-demand or which 
experienced a significant and persistent problem caused by anti-
social behaviour.  When a Selective Licensing area had been 
designated, any private rented property must apply for a licence.  
A number of areas had been designated under the selective 
licensing scheme in St. Mary‟s, Hathershaw, Waterhead, 
Primrose Bank, Hollinwood, Oldham Edge, Alexandra and 
Coldhurst.  The scheme was now in Year 2.  The Board were 
provided with information on the number of applications 
received, number of licences granted and number of 
prosecutions and other information related to the impact the 
enforcement of the scheme had in the designated areas. 
 
Members were informed of work with partners and other Council 
directorates to establish where privately rented properties were.  
There had been a significant reduction in the number of 
requests related to disrepair issues.  Inroads had been made 
into tenant/landlord relationships.  Other benefits of the scheme 
included the green dividend and single point of contact for 
neighbourhoods.  Information was on the website for landlords 
as well as a closed Facebook page.  Progress on the scheme 
would be reported annually.  Consideration was being given to 
rerunning the criteria under the Selective Licensing Scheme as 
set down in the Housing Act to identify if any other areas met the 
criteria as outlined in the report. 
 
Members asked if district teams reported back on hotspots such 
as flytipping and if this would be assessed under the Selective 
Licensing criteria.  It was clarified that information was captured 
related to flytipping and other anti-social behaviour.  However, 
areas would have to meet all the criteria within the scheme. 
 
Members raised issues related to tenants and were informed of 
responsibilities of the tenant and landlord and the behaviour 
agreement available in the landlord pack. 
 
Members raised concerns related to the figures and those 
properties which had not yet been registered.  Members 
informed of the process by which applications were granted 
which could be a lengthy process.  The scheme was self-
financing and there was a problem in the borough with unfit 
properties being bought cheaply and rented dearly. 
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
1. The progress of the Selective Licensing Scheme as 

detailed in the report and the information as provided in 
the meeting be noted. 

2. The reporting mechanisms as outlined in Section 3.5  and 
3.6 of the report be agreed. 

3. An update on the Selective Licensing Scheme be 
reported to Overview and Scrutiny in 12 months‟ time. 

4. A meeting be arranged for Councillor McLaren and 
Councillor Dean to meet with the Head of Public 

Page 6



 

Protection on the concerns raised related to unlicensed 
properties. 

 
NOTE:  Councillor Toor left the meeting during this item. 

12   RESIDENT FIRST PROGRAMME OVERVIEW   

Consideration was given to a report of the Customer 
Development Manager regarding the delivery of the Resident 
First Programme.  The programme had been designed to deliver 
the Council‟s approved co-operative customer strategy to 
embed the Council‟s co-operative approach with residents and 
services.  „Resident First‟ meant that residents would 
increasingly be expected to self-serve and self-solve first before 
interacting with the Council.  It also meant that the Council 
committed to considering the needs of residents first in the way 
that Council services were delivered.  The programme had been 
designed to support Council directorates transform the way they 
interacted with residents and service users and included 
improvements to processes and supporting technology.  The 
programme was centred on transforming the experience of 
residents as part of the Council‟s co-operative ambition.   
 
The Board were provided with an overview of the Resident First 
Programme which included: 
 

 The background to the programme including programme 
objectives and benefits; 

 Programme approach including methodology, business 
change and benefits management; 

 Programme scope; 

 Programme governance including roles & responsibilities 
and risk; and 

 Financial management. 
 
The Council wanted to ensure that it was easier for residents to 
access Council services and serve themselves which would be 
delivered through programme methodology.  A framework had 
been developed which supported effective business change and 
a communications plan had been developed.  The programme 
methodology and scope was outlined in the report. 
 
Members were informed of the need for a good quality service, 
but residents wanted more self-service options.  Research had 
identified that in terms of customer services previously, there 
was not an end-to-end record, inconsistent quality and no 
common record of transactions.  Resident First was putting 
capability in place with end to end journeys.  There would be a 
strong focus on benefits with improved tracking and 
management.  Members were asked how members themselves 
could be engaged with the programme and were asked to be 
involved in the forum. 
 
Members raised the issue of providing evidence with residents 
having to come to the Civic Centre whilst other agencies 
accepted scanned documents. In the past residents could use Page 7



 

libraries and asked why this had changed. Members were 
informed that this was a complex area and that self-scanning 
was being investigated.  Members raised the notification of 
council tax letters on-line and were informed that e-notification 
was being implemented but there would not be a mandatory opt-
in.  Information needed to be clear due to the ongoing council 
tax scam. 
 
Members sought clarification on how often the member forum 
would meet and were informed that this would be on a quarterly 
basis.  The members would be used as a sounding board.  
Members asked if there was a basic information pack available 
when speaking to groups and it was confirmed there was as part 
of the communications plan.  The District Executives were 
recommended to receive information related to the programme 
as all members attended one of the District Executives. 
 
The Board suggested that an email be circulated to all 
members, sponsored by the O&S Board, inviting members to 
the the forum and ensure that the initial meeting date was 
included.   
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
1. The report, comments and information provided at the 

meeting on the Resident First Programme be noted. 
2. An email be circulated to all members inviting them to 

become a member of the forum. 
3. A report be received by the Overview and Scrutiny Board 

which outlined progress in six months‟ time. 
 
NOTE:  Councillor Williamson left the meeting during this item. 
 

13   TOURISM STRATEGY   

Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Economy 
and Skills which provided an update on the Tourism Strategy 
that supported the development and growth of the Tourism 
sector in the borough.  The project would be developed in line 
with national and Greater Manchester context and priorities.  In 
developing the Tourism Strategy and Action Plan the following 
would be considered: 
 

 Existing visitor offer; 

 Oldham Town Centre, The Gallery and Coliseum 
Theatre; 

 Improving offer for business visitors with a number of new 
developments; 

 Oldham as part of the GM family works closely with 
Marketing Manchester to promote tourism in Oldham as 
well as the wider sub-region; 

 Strategy to be developed working with residents, 
businesses and other organisations to identify a co-
operative approach; and 

Page 8



 

 Use of Scarborough Tourism Economic Activity Monitor 
(STEAM) metrics to support the development of the 
strategy. 

 
The draft strategy identified two potential primary destinations: 
Oldham Town Centre and Saddleworth.  The strategy also 
outlined a number of product/market areas that could be 
developed.  The strategic approach to the development of 
tourism was based around six action areas: 
 

 Events 

 Evening Economy 

 Rural Development 

 Heritage 

 Town Centre Development 

 Marketing and Promotion 
 
Members raised the issue of the lack of disabled parking, 
especially for older residents with mobility issues to access the 
town centre amenities.  Members were informed that this had 
been raised as part of analysis and this was being addressed by 
officers in Regeneration as part of the car parking strategy given 
the significant demand for car parking but less disabled parking. 
 
Members suggested the recognition of national days featuring 
music and dance in Parliament Square.  Members were 
informed that a creative group was being set up, as well as Hack 
Oldham and the music scene.  Parliament Square was a good 
public realm space, ideal for large events. 
 
Members raised the issue of the delay in the completion of 
Parliament Square and the prices at certain venues.  Members 
were informed that negotiations were ongoing about deals.  The 
future of the high street would be about the leisure offer. 
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
1. The scope of the Tourism Strategy be endorsed. 
2. The potential primary destinations for visitors to the 

Borough be endorsed. 
3. The offer that had been identified as part of the Tourism 

Strategy be endorsed. 
4. The strengths, opportunities, issues and threats of the 

Tourism Strategy be endorsed. 
5. The primary aim for intervention of the Tourism Strategy 

be endorsed. 
6. The six action areas of the Tourism Strategy be 

endorsed. 
7. A further update be brought back to the Board in 

September 2017. 
 
NOTE:  Councillor Dean left the meeting during this item. 

Page 9



 

 

14   SUSTAINABLE FOOD CITIES NETWORK AND 
ENCOURAGING BETTER FOOD AND DRINK RELATED 
RECYCLING PRACTICES ACROSS ORGANISATIONS IN 
OLDHAM  

 

Consideration was given to a report which provided information 
about a variety of avenues for further exploration regarding the 
more sustainable use of plastic bottles and cups by businesses 
and other organisations across the borough. 
 
A motion had been referred to the Overview and Scrutiny Board 
related to the reduction of wasted and the ecological footprint of 
the food system and proposed resolutions.  The report outlined 
the results of the initial investigations on each topic which 
included drinking cups in Council buildings being recyclable; 
local coffee outlets to be encouraged to adopt recyclable cups, 
on-site recycling facilities, multi-use cups an offer discounts to 
those who brought their own cups; drinking water in schools; 
Courthauld Commitment and plastics recycling. 
 
Members were informed that currently cups were not recycled in 
the Civic Centre and other Council buildings.  This could be 
addressed with the application of environmental standards with 
the Environmental Policy Team. 
 
Local coffee outlets, as highlighted in the press, systems were 
being trialled including an initiative in Manchester.  There were a 
range of significant challenges and more environmentally 
friendly behaviour was being encouraged but was subject to 
funding. 
 
With regard to drinking water in schools, primary schools have 
free water supplies and with regard to secondary school 
provision there was an initiative through Public Health for the 
same provision and work was already ongoing. 
 
The Courthauld Commitment was explained to members which 
was a voluntary pledge across the food and drinks industry 
regarding was prevention practices.  Another phase was aimed 
at local authorities regarding food waste prevention practices.  
The Greater Manchester Waste Disposal Authority (GMWDA) 
had signed up to the agreement in October 2016.  This fitted 
well with the Authority‟s priorities on waste prevention.  One of 
the key aims of the GMWDA‟s communications strategy was 
waste prevention and minimisation including the reduction of 
food waste across Greater Manchester.  There were no major 
requirements to be a signatory.  Consideration was requested to 
the resources needed to realise the benefits and the risks to 
reducing the message of the last twelve months on telling 
residents what goes in which bin.  Food waste was another 
subject matter and the main responsibility for this had fallen 
within the GMWDA on behalf of all Greater Manchester 
Councils. 
 

Page 10



 

GMWDA already had a semi-formal position on plastics 
recycling and had taken the stand that investment in technology 
was secondary to the primary issue due to the different types of 
plastics.  The GMWDA was lobbying for consistency in the use 
of plastic polymers. 
 
Members asked about recycling bins being placed in the town 
centre and were informed that recycling bins were being trialled 
but if not introduced effectively there was a risk of other waste 
being put in those bins. 
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
1. The positive actions that could be taken regarding some 

of the avenues and others that are either legislated for 
already in terms of producer responsibility regulations, as 
outlined at Appendix 1 to the report, and were already 
more appropriately being lobbied at regional or national 
level be noted. 

2. The recommendation that in the short term all services 
order recyclable cups and in the longer term all drinks 
machines come under one team be endorsed and the 
options as outlined in the report encompassed within the 
Council‟s existing ISO 14000 accreditation work be 
endorsed. 

3. An update be received from Public Health on the existing 
joint initiative with United Utilities regarding drinking water 
in schools. 

4. The result of the investigation on the Courthauld 
Commitment agreement be noted and that further 
discussion was needed with GMWDA for the avoidance 
of duplication of communications effort and activity with 
residents be agreed. 

5. the fundamental parameters  in investment in technology 
to better plastics recycling and the GMWDA‟s ongoing 
work to address this be noted. 

6. the policy and legislative challenges and the GMWDA‟s 
ongoing work be noted. 

7. The outcomes of the report be discussed with the 
relevant Cabinet Member before being reported to 
Council. 

15   OLDHAM:  A COOPERATIVE BOROUGH - REFRESHING 
THE PLANS  

 

Consideration was given to a report which provided information 
on the process for refreshing the Oldham Plan and Corporate 
Plan; the timelines and the role of Overview and Scrutiny.  
Members were informed that the Corporate Plan and Oldham 
Plan would be taken to Annual Council in May.  A workshop 
would be organised in April for all elected members.  The 
invitation would be issued through Overview and Scrutiny.   
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
1. The timelines for the development and approval of the 

refreshed Corporate Plan 2017 – 2020 be noted. Page 11



 

2. The proposed workshop for all elected members in April 
be endorsed. 

 

16   REPORT ON COMMUNITY SHOP   

Consideration was given to a report which provided an update 
on the Community Shop and the opportunity for Oldham.  This 
included an update on: 
 

 The developing partnership between Community Shop 
and the Trussell Trust; 

 The revised „Community Food Hub‟ Model outlined by the 
Community Shop and the Trussell Trust partnership; 

 The offer of the „Community Food Hub‟ model to users in 
Oldham; and 

 The discussion with representatives from the Community 
Shop and the Trussell Trust. 

 
The current position was outlined and Members were informed 
of the various models of Community Food Hubs and the key 
offers which included café and hospitality space; learning and 
development space; retail space; food storage and warehouse 
space; social business space and start up incubator space.  It 
was important to consider what the offer would be.  A 
recommended model would be considered in consultation with 
elected members. 
 
Members expressed concern that not many elected members 
knew about the Community Food hub.  Members were informed 
there were a host of activities being driven through by a number 
of partners that included Get Oldham Growing, the End Hunger 
Campaign and the End Hunger Campaign. 
 
Members expressed concern that there were a number of 
activities ongoing which included affordable warmth, energy and 
food but seemed disjointed.  The food hub was showcased as 
one issue amongst a number of activities.   
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
1. The new Community Food Hub be considered further in 

consultation with local partners and elected members in 
the context of existing activity in Oldham and the findings 
be reported back to Overview and Scrutiny. 

2. A meeting be convened with Councillor McLaren, 
Councillor Ball and relevant officers on the 
communication of the number of strands of activity. 

 

17   GENERAL EXCEPTIONS AND URGENT DECISIONS   

There were no General Exceptions or Urgent Decisions to be 
noted. 

Page 12



 

 

18   OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 2016/17 WORK 
PROGRAMME  

 

RESOLVED that the Overview and Scrutiny Board Work 
Programme for 2016/17 be noted. 

19   OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 2017/18  DRAFT 
WORK PROGRAMME  

 

Consideration was given to the draft 2017/18 Overview and 
Scrutiny Board Work Programme.   
 
RESOLVED that the draft 2017/18 Overview and Scrutiny Board 
Work Programme be noted. 

20   KEY DECISION DOCUMENT   

RESOLVED that the Key Decision Document for decisions to be 
taken from 1st March 2017 be noted. 
 

21   GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED AUTHORITY 
(GMCA) FORWARD PLAN  

 

RESOLVED that the GMCA Forward Plan for the period 1st 
March 2017 to 30th June 2017 be noted. 
 

22   JOINT GMCA AND AGMA EXECUTIVE BOARD FORWARD 
PLAN  

 

RESOLVED that the Joint GMCA/AGMA Executive Forward 
Plan for the period 1 March 2017 to 30 June 2017 be noted. 
 

The meeting started at 6.00 pm and ended at 8.50 pm 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Item 4

JOINT GMCA AND AGMA SCRUTINY POOL

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON FRIDAY 10 FEBRUARY 2017
AT MANCHESTER TOWN HALL

PRESENT

Bolton Council Cllr Kevin McKeon
Cllr Andrew Morgan

Bury MBC Cllr Stella Smith
Cllr Roy Walker

Manchester CC Cllr Ahmed Ali
Cllr James Wilson

Oldham MBC Cllr Cheryl Brock
Cllr Colin McLaren

Rochdale BC Cllr Neil Butterworth
Cllr Michael Holly
Cllr Sara Rowbotham

Salford CC Cllr David Jolley

Stockport MBC Cllr Yvonne Guariento
Cllr Iain Roberts

Tameside MBC Cllr John Bell
Cllr Gillian Peet

Trafford MBC Cllr Michael Young
Cllr Barry Brotherton

Wigan MBC Cllr John O’Brien
Cllr Pam Stewart

IN ATTENDANCE

GMCA Richard Paver
Cllr Angeliki Stogia

GMFRS Andrea Hefferman

GMIST Julie Connor
Lindsay Dunn
Susan Ford

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



2

GMWDA John Bland

OPCC Jayne Stephenson

TfGM David Daughney

17/09 APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Cllr Zahara Alijah (Manchester), Cllr Barry Brotherton
(Trafford), Cllr Jillian Collinson (Salford), Cllr Pam Dixon (Trafford), Cllr John McGahan
(Stockport), Cllr Garth Harkness (Oldham), Cllr Debbie Newall (Bolton) and Cllr John Walsh
(Salford).

17/10 CHAIRS ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS

The Chair opened the meeting and welcomed all those present.

17/11 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Non prejudicial declarations of interest in respect of agenda item 6 were received from Cllr
John Bell (GMFRA), Cllr John O’Brien (GMFRA) and Cllr Michael Young (GMWDA).

17/12 MINUTES OF THE GMCA AND AGMA SCRUTINY POOL MEETING HELD ON 9
DECEMBER 2016

The Minutes of the GMCA and AGMA Scrutiny Pool meeting held on 13 January 2017 were
submitted for consideration.

RESOLVED/-

To approve the Minutes of the GMCA and AGMA Scrutiny Pool meeting held on 13 January
2017.

17/13 GMCA/AGMA SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME AND FORWARD PLAN

Members received a report to review and amend the Work Programme for the Joint GMCA
and AGMA Scrutiny Pool for 2016/17.

Susan Ford, GMIST informed members that an initial report and draft recommendations of
the Communications Task and Finish Group would be shared at today’s meeting and an
update by the renewable Energy Task and Finish Group will be brought to Scrutiny Pool in
March.

Page 16



3

RESOLVED/-

1. To note items for the 2016/17 Scrutiny Work Programme.

2. To note the progress with Scrutiny’s Task and Finish work as set out in section 2 of the
report.

17/14 GMCA/AGMA BUDGETS 2017/2018

Richard Paver, Treasurer, GMCA introduced a presentation that provided Members with an
overview of the GMCA and AGMA Budgets for 2017/18.

The presentation provided a high level summary of the reports which went to the meetings
of the Greater Manchester Combined Authority, the Joint GMCA/AGMA Executive Board
and the Police and Crime Panel on 27 January 2017. Links to these reports were highlighted
in the covering report.

The Financial settlement for Local Authorities was issued on 15 December and for the
districts and Fire Authority it represented year 2 of the 4 year settlement offered in 2016/17.
For the Police and Crime Commissioner it represented a further 1 year settlement.

When the final settlement for GM is announced it will be on the basis of participation in the
100% business rates pilot. It is recognised that there will be significant developments during
2017 with an Elected Mayor for the City Region and the increase in devolved powers. The
scope of the Combined Authority will be extended as the transfer of responsibilities for the
Police and Crime Commissioner and Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue Service. Within
this context, the budgets for both GMCA and AGMA are being presented for 2017/18 only.

David Daughney, Head of Finance, TfGM gave an overview of the Transport budget review
process and levy. Following scrutiny, the recommendation was for a standstill in the levy,
after adjustments and a refund to districts of £88million this becomes £104million. The
budgets for 2017/18 include additional costs in relation to both ‘non avoidable’ items and
new responsibilities and activities. Key issues in the transport budget, the levy budget
position for 2017/18 and a summary of the Transport Capital Budget were highlighted to
Scrutiny Pool members.

A member asked what the level of transport related reserves for 2016/17 and 2017/18 are
forecast at and if Transport Capital Budget Metrolink Schemes was attributable to the new
scheme in Trafford.

Officers clarified that the forecast for 31 March 2017 was £157m and the budgeted balance
for 31 March 2018 was £46m. The £20m increase in Metrolink Capital Schemes is mainly
made up of the Trafford Park extension, however other schemes such as the second City
crossing were incorporated into this amount.

Richard Paver provided an overview of non transport revenue budgets with associated
priorities, pressures, risks and proposed savings for 2017/18, including detail of AGMA and
GMCA reserves.

Page 17



4

Members of the Pool asked for a breakdown of the Mayoral Election costs and expressed
their concern with regards to the cost implications associated with ensuring each eligible
individual receives a candidate booklet rather than one per household.

Officers explained that the amount reflects the cost of administering the stand alone election
and it anticipated that the amount will be significantly less for future elections as they will
coincide with districts elections. Furthermore, the model for conducting the election is
overseen by the Electoral Commission.

A member asked if the amount budgeted for the GM Spatial Framework would be likely to
increase following consultation. Richard Paver confirmed that the estimate for this was
reasonable for both 17/18, 18/19 through to completion.

A member asked if it was a coincidence that the savings proposals for 2017/18 were 10%
for each budget heading. Officers reported that 10% was the savings target set for the
various activities.

The grant funding regime for 2017/18 was discussed along with the requirement to negotiate
borrowing powers that need to be in place for 8 May 2017 for the GMCA.

Andrea Hefferman, Director of Corporate Support, Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue
Authority (GMFRA) provided a budget summary and position statement for GMFRA. In order
to secure a four year funding position, the Authority had submitted their efficiency plan to
the Home Office which requires savings to 2019/20 of £13.5m. Frontline fire fighter posts
are expected to reduce to deliver savings of £7.8m and there are savings of £4.6m related
to back office functions.

With regards to the Fire Authority precept, GM are the second lowest stand alone Fire
Authority in the country and GMFRA are seeking to increase their precept by 1.99 % in
2017/18. It was reported that 2016/17 would see the first recruitment in 7 years of fire fighter
posts and a further100 will be recruited in this current year. Diversity has been promoted in
the recruitment process which has resulted in a more reflective workforce of the communities
served. Budget pressures such as resourcing large scale incidents such as the 2015 Boxing
Day floods and the lack of capital grant funding and national changes to the fire and rescue
service were highlighted as potential risks to the efficiency plan.

Members welcomed the approach with regards to recruiting and asked for clarification on
the numbers of women and from the BME community to reflect a more diverse workforce. It
was confirmed that recruitment had not yet taken place, however attracting a more diverse
range of applicants is a key area of focus to ensure that the service reflects the communities
it serves.

A member asked for clarification on the additional cost implications as a result of not
implementing the new shift duty system for fire fighters. It was explained that the implication
of not introducing the system meant greater operational flexibility was not being achieved.
The Deputy Chair of GMFRA and Vice Chair of Scrutiny clarified that negotiations with staff
and trade unions to implement shift changes are ongoing in order to reach agreement and
negotiate a settlement to sustain the community safety of the residents of GM at the same
time as delivering savings.

Page 18



5

It was confirmed that income potential of the new training facility at Bury was not included in
the budget at this stage as this is speculative.

Jayne Stephenson, Chief Finance Officer, provided an update on the Office of the Police
and Crime Commissioner precept and budget proposals for the one year settlement on
behalf of the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC).

The police grant for 2017/18 has been cut by 1.4%, therefore an increase to the police
precept of £5 was proposed and supported by the Police and Crime panel. The precept
increase will raise additional income with a commitment to be used for an additional 70 front
line police constables. Officer recruitment will sustain police officer numbers, replacing
officers that leave the force through natural turnover. This is regarded as an opportunity to
transform the diversity of GMP’s police officers.

Members welcomed the figures provided with regards to the recruitment from BME
background. However, the gender balance was not reflected in the report and was an area
that Scrutiny Pool were interested in. Jayne Stephenson provided a verbal update on the
recruitment of women police officers and gave an overview of those in senior rank up to and
including Assistant Chief Constable level. The figures for gender are available and it was
agreed that these would be circulated to members.

A member asked about the policy not to replace PCSO’s in GM. Jayne Stephenson clarified
that there is not a policy to not replace them, there is however a training capacity issue. The
current priority is to recruit police officers, 100 of which were previously PCSO’s. The number
of PCSO’s at the end of year will be 598 and this figure will increase to 658 next year.

A member asked if the Police and Crime Commissioner had responsibility for witnesses and
if so, was there any funding attached to this. It was confirmed that this is nationally funded
but there was further potential for devolution of services provided to victims and witnesses.

John Bland, Treasurer and Deputy Clerk of Greater Manchester Waste Disposal Authority
(GMWDA) introduced the budget and levy 2017/18 and the medium term financial plan to
2021/22 to the Scrutiny Pool.

The 2017/18 levy is proposed to increase by an average of 5.27%, which is in line with
previous updates. There are proposals to move resources between GMCA and GMWDA in
2017/18, utilising the transport and waste levies, so as to ensure that the impact of a gross
53.50% increase is mitigated at district level on an invest to save basis. Steps are being
taken to reduce future year’s levy burdens through the identification of cost reductions in the
contract and work on further promoting recycling and utilizing targeted proportionate
enforcement action for non-compliance.

A member asked if it was likely that we will reach a stage were low grade plastics can be
recycled. John Bland explained it was more cost effective to design these plastics out of the
system and revert to using recyclable packaging.

A member expressed their concern with regards to the underlying need for an investment of
£77m and asked if there would be any similar proposals going forward. John Bland
explained that the details of contract were part of commercial negotiations.

Page 19



6

RESOLVED/-

1. To note the report.

2. To provide information with regards to gender recruitment statistics in GMP to Scrutiny
Pool.

17/15 GMCA COMMUNICATIONS AND TASK AND FINISH GROUP
RECOMMENDATIONS

Councillor Angeliki Stogia, Chair of the GMCA Communications Task and Finish Group
presented the findings of the GM Scrutiny Pool’s task and finish group on communications.

The report’s findings offered valuable insights into the way that the GMCA’s work is
perceived by internal and external stakeholders where, during this time of rapid change,
effective and consistent communication is vital part of GMCA’s relationship with residents.

Some of the report’s recommendations anticipate activity already being taken forward by the
newly convened GM Communications Team. However it is hoped that task and finish
group’s findings will inform thinking about the development of communications products for
elected members and residents and be built into future work planning and decision making
about GM communications. It is anticipated that the GM communications team overseen by
the GMCA and the deputy head of paid service will ensure that the recommendations are
progressed and provide updates back to GM Scrutiny.

The recommendations were summarised and discussed and subject to any amendments
will report to the GMCA on 24 February.

Members offered support for the report and the recommendations and discussed the
requirement to engage all parties as soon as possible in order to support the upcoming
Mayoral election.

Officers updated Scrutiny Pool on the development of a new web site that would provide key
messages with regards to the role of the Mayor and the new devolved powers. Members
requested that consideration should be given to wider communication and engagement with
key stakeholders that do not necessarily use the internet or social media.

RESOLVED/-

1. To note and endorse the recommendations in the report and presentation.

2. To endorse for consideration and approval of the GMCA/AGMA Joint meeting on 24
February.

Page 20



7

17/16 SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS 2016/2017

10 March 2017
7 April 2017

All meetings would be held 1:00pm - 3:00pm at Manchester Town Hall unless otherwise
advertised.

CHAIR

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

           Item 4 
 

JOINT GMCA AND AGMA SCRUTINY POOL 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON FRIDAY 10 MARCH 2017  
  AT MANCHESTER TOWN HALL 

 
 

PRESENT 
 
 Bolton Council    Cllr Kevin McKeon 
       Cllr Debbie Newall     
 
Bury MBC     Cllr Stella Smith 
       Cllr Roy Walker 
          
Manchester CC    Cllr James Wilson 
        
Oldham MBC     Cllr Cheryl Brock 
       Cllr Colin McLaren 
            
Rochdale BC     Cllr Neil Butterworth 
       Cllr Michael Holly 
       Cllr Sara Rowbotham 
 
Salford CC      Cllr David Jolley  
      
Stockport MBC    Cllr Yvonne Guariento 
       Cllr John McGahan 
        
Tameside MBC    Cllr John Bell  
       Cllr Gillian Peet 
       Cllr Kevin Welsh 
            
 Trafford MBC    Cllr Pam Dixon 
       Cllr Barry Brotherton 
        
Wigan MBC     Cllr John O’Brien 
       Cllr Pam Stewart  
 
IN ATTENDANCE 

 
 GMCA     Andrew Lightfoot 
  

GMIST     Allan Sparrow 
       Susan Ford 
 

 
        

17/17  APOLOGIES 

Page 23



 

2 

 
Apologies were received from Cllr Zahara Alijah (Manchester), Cllr Jillian Collinson (Salford), 
Cllr Andrew Morgan (Bolton) Cllr John Walsh (Salford), Cllr Edward Houlton (Wigan) and 
Cllr Michael Young (Trafford). 
 
 
17/18 CHAIRS ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 
 
The Chair opened the meeting and welcomed all those present. He reported that the GMCA 
had endorsed the recommendations of the Task and Finish Group on communications at 
their meeting on 24 February. 
 
 
17/19 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest made by any member in respect of items on the 
agenda. 
 
 
17/20 MINUTES OF THE GMCA AND AGMA SCRUTINY POOL MEETING HELD ON 10 

FEBRUARY 2017. 
 

The Minutes of the GMCA and AGMA Scrutiny Pool meeting held on 10 February 2017 were 
submitted for consideration. Councillor Brotherton reported that he had submitted his 
apology for the February meeting which were showing him as being present at the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
To approve the Minutes of the GMCA and AGMA Scrutiny Pool meeting held on 10 February 
2017 subject to the removal of Councillor Brotherton’s name from the list of attendees and 
its inclusion on the list of apologies. 
 
 
17/21 GMCA/AGMA SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME AND FORWARD PLAN 
 
A report was submitted requesting members received to review and amend the Work 
Programme for the Joint GMCA and AGMA Scrutiny Pool for 2016/17. 
 
Members requested a formal update on the Employment and Skills Task and Finish Group 
at their meeting in April, in addition to the other reports on the agenda. 
 
Councillor Neil Butterworth added that he would provide members with an update on the 
work being carried out by the Energy Task and Finish Group at the next Scrutiny Pool 
meeting. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. To note items for the 2016/17 Scrutiny Work Programme. 
 
2. To note the progress with Scrutiny’s Task and Finish work as set out in section 2 of the 

report. 

Page 24



 

3 

 

3. That GMIST request a formal update on the Employment and Skills Task and Finish 
Group for the next meeting of the Scrutiny Pool. 

 
4. That GMIST respond to the correspondence received from the Chair of the Energy Task 

and Finish Group and note that an update from the Energy Task and Finish Group would 
be reported to the next meeting. 

 
 
17/22 GMCA TRANSITION 
 
Andrew Lightfoot, Deputy Head of Paid Service provided members with a brief update on 
the organisational changes underway in preparation for devolution to Greater Manchester 
and the election of the Mayor for Greater Manchester in May 2017. 
 
He reminded members that the Greater Manchester Combined Authority was established in 
2011, but over the next couple of months it will move into another iteration as a number of 
functions are brought together in an organisational reconfiguration including the Greater 
Manchester Fire Authority, The Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner and a number 
of AGMA units including New Economy and GMIST. 
 
There are a series of Orders and Government legislation being prepared in advance of the 
Mayoral election on 4 May 2017, residents and prospective candidates can find out more 
information via the new GM elects website (https://www.gmelects.org.uk/). Eamonn Boylan 
(the current Chief Executive of Stockport MBC) has been appointed as the first full time 
Chief Executive for the GMCA and will be starting imminently, and the GM Mayor will take 
office on 8 May. 
 
There have already been a number of Orders laid and passed by Government in relation to 
many of the GMCA new functions, including the GM Fire and Rescue Service and the Office 
of the Police and Crime Commissioner. Officers reported that further Orders are on track to 
support the election and transition for the GMCA. 
 
GM will have unique powers in relation to the Mayor and the Combined Authority, to support 
this there are specific legislation being put in place regarding this broad range of powers. 
 
HR consultations are ongoing with all staff who are affected by the organisational changes 
with no major issues arising from the TUPE processes. A phased transfer of staff begins 
from 1 April, with the majority of staff being transferred on 8 May.  Work regarding systems 
such as finance, ICT, payroll etc; would built around the current GM Fire and Rescue Service 
systems. 
 
The GMCA headquarters will be Churchgate House from April 2017, but not all GMCA staff 
will be based there. 
 
Members asked how transport powers would be distributed in the new arrangements 
between TfGMC and the GM Mayor.  Officers explained how these issues were currently 

Page 25



 

4 

being worked through in detail but nothing should fundamentally change immediately.  The 
GM Mayoral powers will specifically be in relation to the Buses Bill and strategic 
implementation for smart ticketing, but the relationship between these and the transport 
functions of the GMCA is being considered as part of the devolution arrangements.  There 
would, however, be an ongoing need for a committee of all GM authorities to input into 
transport strategy for GM. 
 
Members further reiterated the need for a joined up transport system for GM that includes 
the rail system.  Officers reported that the GM Transport Vision includes all methods of public 
transport, and there is already work underway to influence transport regulation and transport 
provision which will enable smart ticketing to be as successful in our conurbation as other 
areas. 
 
A member asked what the level of borrowing powers would be for the GMCA post April 
2017.  Officers confirmed that there are ongoing discussions with Treasury regarding this 
issue and that initial specified potential borrowing powers were not comparable with local 
authorities, however there had recently been a shift in this view and it was now looking more 
positive. 
 
Members asked to have sight of the Overview and Scrutiny Order to further understand how 
the scrutiny function will be arranged going forward.  Officers agreed to circulate the Order 
and informed members that the Scrutiny Working Group has been reviewing the scrutiny 
function over the past few months.  This group included representation from local authorities 
and has reached some conclusions in line with legislation which will be shared with the 
GMCA. Their recommendations support a wider scrutiny function which will cover a broader 
range of functions and will require a greater number of scrutiny committees to have the 
capacity to undertake these additional responsibilities.  
 
A member asked whether the organisational changes will include the joining of AGMA and 
the GMCA.  It was confirmed that the GMCA will assume all the AGMA functions, but that 
legally the dissolution of AGMA may take a couple of years.  
 
Members of the Pool asked whether they will be included in the GMCA Scrutiny function 
going forward and whether there would be the opportunity to develop their knowledge.  
Officers confirmed that through the new arrangements there would be the requirement for 
more members to be involved in overview and scrutiny, however members would continue 
to be appointed through their authorities as per the current arrangements. In addition to this, 
members further asked whether there would be a members allowance designated for 
scrutiny.  Current arrangements do not include allowances for scrutiny members, but officers 
reported that this could change in the future. 
 
Members asked that local authorities be informed as soon as possible as to the number of 
positions on the GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool in order that time be given to local negotiations.  
Officers assured that this would happen, but reminded members that there was some work 
required in advance to determine political and gender balances. 
 
A member asked whether there would be a Department of Work and Pensions (DWP) 
budget coming to GM as part of devolution.  Officers reported that the Working and Health 
Programme is part of devolution deal with GM and Government and some of the GMCA 
team will oversee this budget going forward, it was suggested that this may be a useful area 
for members to scrutinise in the future.  

Page 26



 

5 

 
Members of the Pool asked how likely GM would see the deregulation of buses through the 
Buses Bill.  Officers have been assured through discussions (with MPs and senior servants) 
bill will receive royal ascent in early April but that an update could be provided to scrutiny at 
the next meeting.  
 
Members recognised that as the remit of the GMCA grows further, that the capacity of the 
scrutiny function needs to echo this in order for detailed scrutiny to be effectively undertaken.  
Officers reported that the function and volume of work for overview and scrutiny has been 
considered by the scrutiny working group and included in their recommendations.  This 
paper will be circulated to all GM authorities over the next couple of weeks and would also 
be shared with members of the Scrutiny Pool for comment.  Members welcomed this, and 
further suggested that an item on the future of scrutiny be brought to the next meeting of the 
Pool. 
 
Further to this, members urged that scrutiny continue to receive policy development at a 
pre-decision stage in order for timely and useful input.  Officers re-iterated that this has been 
a central principle of overview and scrutiny for the past few years and the GMCA welcome 
this approach. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. To note the report. 

 
2. To share the Scrutiny Order and the Centre for Public Scrutiny guide with members. 

 
3. To consider the devolved Working Well Programme as a future item for scrutiny. 

 
4. To receive an update on the progress of the Buses Bill at the meeting in April 2017. 

 
5. To circulate the recommendations of the Scrutiny Working Group with members of the 

Pool and that an item on the future GM scrutiny function be brought to the next meeting. 
 
 
17/23 GREATER MANCHESTER STRATEGY REFRESH   

 
Andrew Lightfoot, Deputy Head of Paid Service GMCA reminded members of his previous 
presentation which shared the planned approach to a conversational consultation for the 
Greater Manchester Strategy (GMS) Refresh.  The first phase was an open discussion 
which asked what was important to residents of GM, and received 1500 responses  
 
The first iteration of the draft strategy has been created from those responses and shared 
with the GMCA at their meeting in February.  Members of the GMCA asked that the strategy 
consultation be extended post-election of the GM Mayor to ensure that residents had further 
opportunities to engage and that the widest possible consultation be undertaken. 
 
Both members and officers recognised that the 2013 strategy was out of date and a 
changing environment necessitated a refreshed GMS.  The strategy shared some 
successes from the previous strategy including investment, technology advances and 
devolution, but there was a need to look at where we are now.  There are a number of 

Page 27



 

6 

current key issues for GM highlighted in draft strategy including productivity gap, low wages, 
the poverty agenda and challenges within the skills system. 
 
The GMS defines a new vision for Greater Manchester as – 
‘By 2040 Greater Manchester will be one of the world’s leading city regions, reaping the 
benefits of sustainable and inclusive growth across a thriving Northern economy.  It will be 
ever more self- reliant, connected, dynamic, inclusive, digitally-driven, productive, innovative 
and creative. A destination of choice to live, work, invest and visit, GM will be known for the 
high levels of happiness and quality of life our people enjoy.  No one will be held back, and 
no one will be left behind: all will be able to contribute to and benefit fully from the continued 
success of Greater Manchester.’ 
 
The draft GMS is clear about our priorities going forward focusing on strong people and 
strong place which continues the push to reform public services and focusses on improving 
outcomes through working with communities.  It further recognises the need for economic 
growth across whole of GM and not just Manchester city centre, creating opportunities for 
all residents. 
 
Members commended an excellent report and passionate vision.  Specifically technological 
and digital development in GM was highlighted as exemplary but members felt that there 
was a need for an infrastructure to support these areas of growth through the sustained 
establishment of industries (and job creation) to ensure we can deliver on our aspirations. 
Members of the Pool urged for the need to see benefits in GM not just in other areas of the 
world and commented that the strategy does not go far enough in determining how GM will 
create new employment opportunities and economic growth in these sectors.   
 
Members felt that the strategy needed more emphasis as to how we will practically achieve 
its aspirations. Its reference to ‘no one left behind’ could come across as quite flippant as 
currently lots of people currently are left behind.  Members urged that the GMS should 
include plans to ensure high quality education for all to tackle the current skills gap and 
specific measures to address health and social care barriers that prevent people from 
working.  Currently it seems that GM have limited control over education provision and 
influencing a curriculum which addresses the skills gap that GM requires.  Officers 
recognised the deficit in skills delivery and its importance in relation to improving life chances 
and offered to look at how this part of the GMS could be enhanced. 
 
Members expressed their pride in how hard officers in GM have worked over the years to 
ensure that the conurbation is the best that it can be for all its residents.  There has been 
marked progress since the initial GMS, and the new document needs to be a visionary tool 
to drive progress in the future.  Members reported a need for strong aspirations as devolution 
is an exciting time for GM.  
 
The extension of the consultation period was endorsed by members.  Lessons from the 
communications task and finish group should be used in the GMS consultation specifically 
in determining what devolution means for each community, and using a localised approach 
to improve engagement. Members felt that the draft GMS does not currently reflect this but 
that this approach could markedly improve the levels of engagement.  Officers agreed to 
pick up the recommendations in light of the second phase of the consultation. 
 
Furthermore, members commented that there was a need to generate passion and 
enthusiasm with the public, and that it would be an important part of the role of the GM 

Page 28



 

7 

Mayor to promote a positive message regarding devolution and increase the rapport with 
residents. 
 
A member commented that “strong people” may not be a term which would resonate with 
all people in GM and asked that officers give consideration to the use of the term “resilient”. 
 
Members asked that the need for valuable practical vocational training for young people is 
highlighted through the GMS, as often those who are less academically able do not have 
the opportunity to develop their practical skills and given the ability to recognise the value 
they have in society.  However these skills and trades are vital to the economic development 
of GM. 
 
Members commented that there seemed a low level of engagement from young people in 
initial phase of the GMS consultation, and asked officers what will be done differently to 
engage with ‘hard to reach’ parts of the GM population. It was reported that GM was now 
getting the message out through young people forums and face to face events facilitated by 
neutral creditable people. Officers continue to improve systems and processes to engage 
and consult all GM residents. . 
 
Members urged for the need to summarise the GMS in a ‘one-page’ document to keep the 
message short, clear and concise and improve engagement with residents. 
 
The Chair summarised the discussion and thanked members of their input. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
To note the report and amended timeframe for the second phase of the consultation. 
 

 
17/24 SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS 2016/2017 
 
The next meeting of the GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool will be held on Friday 7 April 2017. 
    

1. GMIST to invite Sam Riley from the NW Skills Academy to the next meeting. 
 

    
 

CHAIR 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

HEALTH SCRUTINY 
21/02/2017 at 6.00 pm 

 
 

Present: Councillor McLaren (Chair)  
Councillors Garry, Goodwin, Toor, Williamson and Williams 
 

 Also in Attendance: 
 Oliver Collins Corporate Policy Development 

Officer, Oldham Metropolitan 
Borough Council (OMBC) 

 Caroline Drysdale Pennine Care NHS Foundation 
Trust Service Director for Oldham 
Community Services 

 Dan Lythgoe Programme Lead Oldham Urgent 
Care Alliance and Transformation 
Lead for Pennine Care NHS 
Foundation Trust 

 Peter Tomlin Head of Transformation and 
Prevention Health and Wellbeing, 
OMCB 

 Fabiola Fuschi Constitutional Services Officer, 
OMBC 

 

 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

There were no apologies for absence received.  
 

2   URGENT BUSINESS   

There were no items of urgent business received. 
 

3   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

There were no declarations of interest received. 
 

4   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   

There were no public questions received.  
 

5   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING   

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Health Scrutiny Sub-
Committee meeting held on 10th January 2017 be approved as a 
correct record. 
 

6   MINUTES OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD TO 
NOTE  

 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Health and Wellbeing Board 
meeting held on 1stNovember 2016 be noted.  
 

7   MINUTES OF THE GREATER MANCHESTER HEALTH 
AND SOCIAL CARE STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP BOARD  

 

Page 31

Agenda Item 8



 

 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Greater Manchester Health 
and Social Care Strategic Partnership Board meeting held on 
16th December 2016 be noted.  
 

8   MINUTES OF THE GREATER MANCHESTER JOINT 
HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Greater Manchester Joint 
Health Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 19th October 2016 
be noted.  
 
 
 

9   MINUTES OF THE JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR PENNINE ACUTE NHS 
TRUST  

 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Joint Health Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee for Pennine Acute NHS Trust meeting held 
on 17th November 2016 be noted.  
 

10   ACTION & RESOLUTION LOG   

With regards to actions from November meeting, the Committee 
were informed that conversations had taken place with the 
Youth Council and Senior Officers to bring a proposal to the 
Mayor’s Healthy Living Campaign next year about raising 
awareness of the issues linked to all forms of smoking. 
 
RESOLVED that the Action and Resolution Log of the 
November and January meetings be noted.  
 

11   MEETING OVERVIEW   

RESOLVED that the Meeting Overview be noted.  
 

12   INTEGRATED CLUSTER WORKING   

Consideration was given to a report of the Head of 
Transformation and Prevention Health and Wellbeing, Oldham 
Metropolitan Borough Council (OMBC) and the Programme 
Lead Oldham Urgent Care Alliance and Transformation Lead for 
Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust, on the integrated health 
and social care new operating model in Oldham. 
 
The report authors presented the information and addressed the 
enquiries of the Committee.   
 
It was explained that the new operating model focused on 
providing a coordinated approach to care. Adult Social Care, 
Community Nursing and Early Intervention (i.e.: Age UK and 
Positive Steps) would work together in specific localities to 
address the needs of clients with long term conditions to avoid 
unplanned admissions to hospital. The teams would also be 
responsible for post-discharge community support and early 

Page 32



 

 

help and prevention.  Furthermore, the teams would act as the 
multi-disciplinary team for continuing healthcare and end of life 
care.  
 
The integrated teams would be located in each of the primary 
care clusters in the Borough. Each cluster would group a certain 
number of GP practices. The criteria to identify the clusters were 
based on planning for populations of 40,000 – 60,000 people. 
Approval of the proposals still needed to be sought from the 
Clinical Commissioning Group and the Council.  
 
It was reported that Chadderton and Werneth GPs which formed 
Oldham West Cluster had been designated as early adopter of 
the new integrated model. The progress to develop the 
integrated services was outlined. A steering group had been 
created to focus on extending the primary care role. The 
proposed HR structure of the integrated teams was presented. It 
featured a joint approach to leadership to ensure single 
accountability for the health and social care needs of the 
population.    
 
Members sought and received clarification / commented on the 
following points: 

– Making clusters identifiable to members of the public 
residing in a particular area of the Borough – It was 
explained that the different criteria to access GP and 
Council services represented a significant challenge in 
shaping the new operating model.   

– Care planning against care delivery – it was explained 
that, in order to receive the quickest response, residents 
should approach the cluster where their GP was located. 
However, care could be provided where they resided.   

– Responsibility for care coordination when the GP was 
located in a different local authority – It was explained 
that other local authorities in Greater Manchester were 
also working on integration. Early Adopters were utilised 
to determine responses to different issues.  

– Communication between clusters – It was explained that 
the client’s support plan would be the communication tool 
available to all organisations involved with the client’s 
care. The GP system would be the universal system as 
all clients have a GP.  

– In forming the clusters, consideration would be given to 
GP practices under special measures. 

– Members of the public’s understanding of changes in 
Health and Social Care – It was explained that through 
the work of the Early Adopter it would be clearer how to 
access the information contained in the support plan. 
Other organisations were involved in increasing the 
understanding of mental health and self-care.  

– The integrated model could bring efficiencies in the long 
term. Currently, the organisations involved in building up 
the integrated model focused on the person’s journey.  

Page 33



 

 

– Health and social care challenges and impact on Pennine 
Acute Trust – It was explained that the integrated model 
worked in tandem with the urgent care role also with 
regards to discharge facilities to make it more systematic.  

– Integrated model and implementation timeline – it was 
explained that the Early Adopter would start operating in 
April 2017. The integrated teams would be in place 
across Oldham by 2018. This would coincide with the 
implementation of the Integrated Care Organisation.  

 
RESOLVED that: 

1. The progress made in implementing the cluster based 
integrated health and social care teams in Oldham be 
noted.  

2. The local implementation of the new operating model be 
discussed at District Executive level.  

3. A workshop open to all to discuss the publicity of the new 
operating model be organised in September 2017.  

4. A further report be presented in February 2018 to outline 
how the new model has been embedded.  

 

13   PENNINE CARE CQC REPORT   

Consideration was given to a report of the Pennine Care NHS 
Foundation Trust (PCFT) Service Director for Oldham 
Community Services which informed of the outcome of the Care 
Quality Commission’s (CQC) inspection of PCFT that had taken 
place in the summer of 2016.  
 
Members were informed that PCFT delivered community and 
mental health services for children and adults across six 
different localities which were all subject to the inspection. 
However, the CQC’s report considered and rated the Trust’s 
services in their entirety. Therefore, officers had to draw their 
own conclusions with regards to services in Oldham.  
 
It was reported that the overall rating for services at PCFT was 
“Requires Improvement”. Feedback had been sought from 
service users/cares and members of staff. Clinical records had 
been examined; medication reviews, home visits and 
unannounced inspections had also been carried out by the 
inspectors to gather the necessary data.  
 
Several areas of good practice were highlighted such as 
members of staff’s support and care to patients, well-structured 
governance pathways, established partnership working, facilities 
that promoted recovery and patients’ confidentiality and the 
Trust’s clear visions and values shared by members of staff.  
 
As a result of the inspection, a Trust’s Quality Development Plan 
had been produced to address 15 key areas requiring 
improvement over the next 12 months. An internal process of 
monitoring and assurance had also been established to 
ascertain progress against the required actions. 
 

Page 34



 

 

In order to address the issues raised by the inspection which 
were not sole responsibility of PCFT, an Improvement 
Transformation Board had been established whose membership 
listed the Clinical Commission Group (CCG) together with other 
stakeholders.   
 
Members sought and received clarification / commented on the 
following points: 

– PCFT Supervision policy and Trusts’ adherence to it – it 
was explained that there was a difference between 
clinical and staff supervision. The Trust was seeking IT 
solutions to support the supervision recording process.  

– Mandatory staff training below the Trust’s minimum 
standards – It was explained that the mandatory training 
was being recorded on the system. Issues existed on the 
accuracy of dates. An action plan was in place.  

 
The Health Scrutiny Sub-Group raised other questions 
concerning the conclusions outlined in the CQC’s report about 
Mental Health services. The questions could not be answered 
as no Mental Health Services representative was present at the 
meeting to address the queries. It was agreed that a written 
response to the questions raised by the Elected Members would 
be sent to the Chair of the Health Scrutiny Sub-Group within a 
week from this evening’s meeting.  
 
RESOLVED that: 

1. The content of the Pennine Care CQC report be noted.  
2. A copy of the Trust’s Quality Improvement Plan be sent 

by the Service Director for Oldham Community Services 
Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust to the Members of 
the Health Scrutiny Sub-Group.  

3. A meeting be arranged with the Chair of the Health 
Scrutiny Sub-Group, the Service Director for Oldham 
Community Services -Pennine Care NHS Foundation 
Trust, the Oldham Mental Health Services representative 
and the Corporate Policy Development Officer to 
examine the areas addressed by the Trust’s Quality 
Improvement Plan and the impact on the wider 
community.  

4. A report be presented to the Health Scrutiny Sub-Group 
in March 2017 to propose areas of consideration from 
the Trust’s Quality Improvement Plan that could form the 
topic of a Task and Finish Group, should the Sub-Group 
recommend this option.  

5. A written response to the questions raised by the Health 
Scrutiny Sub-Group on the conclusions of the CQC’s 
report about Mental Health services be sent to the Chair 
of the Sub-Group by the Oldham Mental Health Services 
representative within one week from today’s meeting.  

 

14   DEMENTIA MOTION   

Consideration was given to a report of the Corporate Policy 
Development Officer which informed of the Dementia Motion 

Page 35



 

 

that had been referred to the Overview and Scrutiny Board by 
Full Council at its meeting on 7th September 2016 to establish 
ways to deliver more dementia-friendly services in the Borough 
and improve the accessibility of existing services for people 
affected by Dementia.  
 
The Committee were informed that a task group representing 
the Council, the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) and other 
partner organisations had been established to provide a 
response to the requests described in the Council’s motion. The 
progress made against the list of proposals, as outlined in the 
appendix to the report, was presented. It was explained that, 
although the motion had received general support, some of the 
proposals had financial implications for which approval needed 
to be sought.  
 
Members sought and received clarification / commented on the 
following points: 

– Dementia Buddy wristband and safeguarding issues –It 
was explained that contact had been made with other 
local authorities that had already implemented the 
scheme to determine costing and possible solutions to 
safeguarding issues.  

– Transport Sub-Group and Dementia Awareness training 
for transport providers – It was explained that the 
Corporate Policy Development Officer would liaise with 
the Trading Standards and Licensing Manager to discuss 
the possibility that the Dementia Awareness training be 
included in the Licensing process for taxi drivers. 

 
The Committee agreed to present an interim report to the 
Council’s meeting on 22nd March 2017. The report would provide 
Full Council with an update on progress made against the 
Dementia Motion. The financial implications of some of the 
proposals would be brought to the attention of the Cabinet 
Members for their approval before a full report on the feasibility 
of the recommendations outlined in the Dementia Motion be 
presented to Full Council later on this year.  
 
RESOLVED that: 

1. The progress made to date on the Dementia Motion be 
noted.  

2. An interim report be presented to Full Council on 22nd 
March 2017 to outline the progress made so far on the 
Dementia Motion.  

3. A progress report be presented to the Health Scrutiny 
Sub-Group after the financial implications of some of the 
proposals have been considered by Cabinet Members.  

4. Councillor Garry be invited to take part to the Dementia 
Task Group.  

 
At this point in the proceedings, Councillor Williams left the 
meeting.  
 

Page 36



 

 

15   MAYORS HEALTHY LIVING CAMPAIGN   

Consideration was given to a report of the Corporate Policy 
Development Officer which provided an update on the Mayor’s 
Healthy Living Campaign. The Campaign aimed to promote 
information on prevention and support about three health topics 
relevant to the Borough: Oral Decay in Children, Health Checks 
and Mental Health, in particular with regards to armed forces 
veterans. The three specific areas of health had been chosen by 
the current Mayor of Oldham at the beginning of the Municipal 
Year 2016/17.  
 
The Committee were informed that Health Checks would be 
offered to all Elected Members on 22nd March 2017 before Full 
Council’s meeting. A report concerning Armed Forces and the 
mental health of veterans would be presented to the Health and 
Wellbeing Board in June. An update would be provided to the 
Health Scrutiny Sub-Group in July 2017.  
 
RESOLVED that: 

1. The content of the report be noted.  
2. A report on this year’s Mayor’s Health Living Campaign 

be presented to the Health Scrutiny Sub-Group at the 
end of this Municipal Year.  

3. The Chair of the Health Scrutiny Sub-Group and the 
Corporate Policy Development Officer meet with the new 
Mayor to discuss how to take forward the Mayor’s 
Healthy Living Programme.   

 

16   COUNCIL MOTIONS   

The Committee gave consideration to a report of the Corporate 
Policy Development Officer which provided an update on 
progress made so far to implement the Motion of Business from 
14th December Council concerning the Motor Neurone Disease 
(MND).  
 
The Committee was informed that the Cabinet Member for 
Health and Wellbeing had circulated the MND Charter and 
supporting documents to all Councillors. Members of staff would 
be informed about MND via the Internal Team Brief tomorrow.   
 
RESOLVED that the content of the report be noted.  
 

17   HEALTH SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME   

RESOLVED that the Health Scrutiny Work Programme be 
noted.  
 

The meeting started at 6.00 pm and ended at 7.30 pm 
 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PERFORMANCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY 
SELECT COMMITTEE 
08/12/2016 at 6.00 pm 

 
 

Present: Councillor Wrigglesworth (Chair)  
Councillors Ahmad, Dean, Malik and Sheldon 
 

 Also in Attendance: 
 Councillor Moores Cabinet Member for Health 

and Wellbeing  
 Councillor Price Deputy Cabinet Member for 

Health and Wellbeing 
 Mike Bridges – item 8 only Public Health Specialist 
 Neil Consterdine – item 9 only Head of Youth and Leisure 
 Fabiola Fuschi Constitutional Services 
 Helen Gerling, item 11 only Interim Director Commercial 

and Transformational Services  
 Stuart Lockwood – item 9 only Chief Executive - Oldham 

Community Leisure Ltd  
 Simon Miller – item 11 only Service Delivery Manager – 

Unity Partnership 
 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors M. 
Bashforth and Briggs.  
 

2   URGENT BUSINESS   

There were no items of urgent business received. 
 

3   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

Councillor Dean declared a personal and prejudicial interest at 
Item 11 – Unity Partnership Performance by virtue of his 
appointment to the Unity Partnership Board and the Unity 
Partnership Joint Venture Board.  
 
Councillor Malik declared a personal interest at Item 10 – 
Oldham Community Leisure by virtue of his membership with 
Oldham Community Leisure Ltd.  
 

4   MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING   

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Performance and Value for Money Select Committee meetings 
held on 20th October 2016 and on 10th November 2016 be 
approved as a correct record.  
 

5   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   

There were no public questions received.  
 
 
 Page 39

Agenda Item 9



 

6   MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD TO 
NOTE  

 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Board meeting held on 11th October 2016 be noted.  
 

7   2016/17 WORK PROGRAMME OF THE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY PERFORMANCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY 
SELECT COMMITTEE  

 

The Chair informed the Select Committee that an Education 
Performance workshop would take place on 15th or 23rd 
February 2017 to examine Early Years and Secondary Schools 
performance.  
 
RESOLVED that the 2016/17 Work Programme be noted.  
 

8   NHS HEALTH CHECKS   

Consideration was given to a progress report of the Public 
Health Specialist on the performance of the NHS Health Check 
Programme in Oldham during 2015/16. The report author 
accompanied by the Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing 
attended the meeting to present the report and to address the 
enquiries of the Select Committee.  
 
The NHS Heath Check Programme aimed to prevent the 
diffusion of cardiovascular diseases by assessing the risk of 
developing one or more conditions that fall in the above 
category.   
 
It was explained that in 2015/16 there had been an increase in 
the number of eligible population who had been offered a NHS 
Health Check via G.P. practices in Oldham. Consequently, the 
number of eligible population who had received a NHS Health 
Check through GP practices had increased. A Public Health 
Programme Manager had been appointed to support the 
delivery of the NHS Health Check Programme across Oldham.  
 
It was reported that in 2015/16 Oldham was above the North 
West and England average for the number of people who had 
been offered a NHS Health Check. 9.1% of the eligible 
population received a NHS Health Check; this was similar to the 
North West and England average.  
 
The position for quarter 1 and 2 of the current year was outlined. 
The Select Committee was informed that an improvement plan 
was currently being developed to increase the quality of the 
Health Check programme in Oldham. Furthermore, Oldham 
Council had joined a Greater Manchester self- assessment 
programme to improve the monitoring, quality and delivery of 
Health Check plan across GM as part of the health and social 
care devolution.  
 
Elected Members sought and received clarification / commented 
on the following points: Page 40



 

– How the population’s education and income affected the 
demand for Health Checks.  

– Corporate Performance report and Health Check targets 
– It was explained that the service was measured against 
a five year cumulative target. This affected negatively the 
results showing red on the Corporate Performance report 
although the service achieved its annual targets.  

– Concern over the fact that the male population seemed 
more reluctant to take part in Health Checks.  

– Invitation to attend health check appointments – it was 
explained that a Programme Manager had been deployed 
to work with G.P. practices to improve the health check 
offer for patients.  

– Care Quality Commission (CQC) and performance on 
NHS health checks? – It was explained that CQC 
required that G.P. practices offered health checks to their 
patients. However, there was no obligation on G.P.s to do 
so. In Oldham all practices but one had signed the 
contract to deliver NHS health checks to their patients. 
The Public Health Consultant to provide the Select 
Committee with the details of this G.P. practice.    

– Local Authority and NHS Health Checks monitoring 
process – It was explained that the Council was aware of 
the number of patients in each G.P. practice that met the 
requirements for the NHS Health Check. On this basis, a 
target of 20% had been assigned to each G.P. practice.   

 
RESOLVED that: 

1. The progress report on the NHS Health Check 
Programme be noted.  

2. The Public Health Manager provide the details of the G.P. 
practice in Oldham that did not offer NHS Health Checks 
to its patients.  
 

9   EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   

RESOLVED that, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the 
Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded 
from the meeting for the following items of business on the 
grounds that they contain exempt information under paragraph 3 
of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, and it would not, on 
balance, be in the public interest to disclose the reports. 
 

10   OLDHAM COMMUNITY LEISURE PERFORMANCE   

Consideration was given to a progress report of the Head of 
Public Health and Leisure on the year to date position of 
Oldham Community Leisure Ltd against its contractual key 
performance indicators (KPIs). The report also provided an 
update on the new Oldham and Royton leisure centres during 
the first 12 month of their activity. The author of the report 
accompanied by the Chief Executive of Oldham Community 
Leisure, the Cabinet Members for Health and Wellbeing and his 
Deputy attended the meeting to address the questions of the 
Select Committee.  
 Page 41



 

The Select Committee sought and received clarification / 
commented on the following points: 

– Leisure Centre Membership.  
– Capacity of the new leisure facilities and residents’ 

demand.  
– Usage of the swimming pool and school swimming 

programme.  
– Users’ feedback on the new leisure facilities.  

 
RESOLVED that: 

1. The content of Oldham Community Leisure Performance 
report be noted.  

2. The next performance report be presented in July 2017.  
 

11   UNITY PARTNERSHIP PERFORMANCE   

Consideration was given to a report of the Interim Director of 
Commercial and Transformational Services on the performance 
and value for money provisions and monitoring of the contract 
with Unity Partnership for the annual period ending 31st March 
2016. Unity Partnership Service Delivery Manager was in 
attendance with the author of the report to address the enquiries 
of the Select Committee.  
 
The Select Committee sought and received clarification / 
commented on the following points: 

– Format of the report. 
– Key performance indicators and targets. 
– IT system and service performance 

 
RESOLVED that the Unity Partnership Performance report be 
noted.  
 

The meeting started at 6.00 pm and ended at 7.33 pm 
 

Page 42



 

 

  
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
Reason for Decision 
 
 
The reason for the decision is to gain approval from the Board for the appointment of 
elected members to the Outside Scrutiny Bodies for 2017/18, Co-opted Members for 
Education Matters and to the Health Scrutiny Committee. 
 
Executive Summary 
 
It was resolved at the Annual Council meeting on Wednesday, 17th May 2017 that all 
appointments to the Outside Scrutiny Bodies for 2017/18 should be made by the Overview 
and Scrutiny Board. 
 
Appointments 
 
1. The following appointments be made by the Overview and Scrutiny Board: 
 

a. Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust  - Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee  - 3 places (2 RA + 2 subs + 1 Main Opp + 1 ordered sub) 
 
Labour (2)     Lib Dem (1) 

      McLaren      McCann 
      Briggs      Williamson (Sub) 
 
 Pennine Care NHS Trust – Joint Mental Health Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee – 3 places (2 RA + 2 subs + 1 Main Opp + 1 ordered sub) 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 

 
Appointments to Outside Bodies and  
Co-opted Members for Education Matters 
 

Officer Contact:  Director of Legal Services 
 
Report Author: Lori Hughes, Constitutional Services Officer 
Ext. 4716 
 
13th June 2017 

Page 43

Agenda Item 10



 

  2 

Labour (2)     Lib Dem (1) 
McLaren      Williamson 
Toor      McCann (Sub) 

 
b. GM Joint Health Scrutiny Committee – 1 place (RA + 1 sub) 

 
Labour (1) 
McLaren 
Dean (Sub) 
 

c. AGMA & GMCA Scrutiny Pool – 3 Places (2 RA + 1 Main Opp) (Both sexes 
must be represented within the three nominations, non-TFGMC members.) 

 
Labour (2)     Lib Dem (1) 

      No appointments needed 2017/18. 
 
  d. Health Scrutiny Committee – 6 places (5 RA + 1 Main Opp) 

 
2. The following be appointed Statutory Co-opted Members for Education Matters 

(with voting rights): 
 
 Mr. A. Armitage, Manchester Church of England Diocese 
 Mr. V. Hall, Salford Roman Catholic Diocese 
 Mr. C. Maude, Parent /Governor Primary School  
 Vacant, Parent /Governor Secondary School 
  
 
Recommendations 
 
That the Overview and Scrutiny Board approve the appointments as outlined in the report. 
 
 
 

Page 44



[O&S WP at 26/05/17 – 17/18 V1]        Page 1 of 5 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18 AND PERFORMANCE MONITORING PLAN 

 
PART A – MEETING PROGRAMME  

  
MEETING 
DATE & 
VENUE 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY OF ISSUE CABINET 
PORTFOLIO (link 
to Corporate 
Outcome) 

RESOLUTION / 
RECOMMENDATION 

Comments  

      

Tuesday, 13th 
June 2017 
6.00 p.m. 
 
Deadline for 
reports: 1st 
June 2017 

Children’s Services – 
Getting to Good 
 

Update and Overview on 
the service and mock 
inspection 
 

Social Care and 
Safeguarding 
(Getting the Basics 
Right) 
 

 Requested by the 
Board in January 
2017 

 Adult Safeguarding – 
Deprivation of Liberty 
Safeguards 

Update to the Board Social Care and 
Safeguarding 
(Getting the Basics 
Right) 
 

 Requested by the 
Board in January 
2017 

 Corporate Plan Refresh Economy and 
Enterprise 
(Reforming and 
Empowering Public 
Services) 

 Requested via 
email 22 May 17  

      

      

Tuesday, 18th 
July 2017 
6.00 p.m. 
 
Deadline for 
reports: 6th 
July 2017 

Get Oldham Working 
and Career 
Advancement 
Services 

Update to the Board Employment and 
Skills (A Working 
Borough) 

 Requested by the 
Board in July 2016 
and January 2017 

 Inclusion Review Update to the Board Education and Early  Requested via 

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 11



[O&S WP at 26/05/17 – 17/18 V1]        Page 2 of 5 

(Phase 2) Years (A Working 
Borough) 

email 11 May 2017 

      

      

      

      

      

Tuesday, 5th 
September 
2017, 6.00 p.m. 
 
Deadline for 
reports:  23rd 
August 2017 

Shared Information 
Management and 
Governance Centre 
of Excellence 

Progress on the 
implementation 

Finance & HR 
(Reforming and 
Empowering Public 
Services) 

 Requested by the 
Board in November 
2016 

 Multi-Agency 
Safeguarding Hub 
 

Update on the development 
of the Hub 

Social Care and 
Safeguarding 
(Getting the Basics 
Right) 
 

 Requested by the 
Board in January 
2017 

 Tourism Strategy Update on the development 
of the Strategy 

  Requested by the 
Board in March 
2017 

 Resident First 
Programme 

Update on the 
implementation 

  Requested by the 
Board in March 
2017 

      

      

Tuesday, 17th 
October 
6.00 p.m. 
 
Deadline for 
Reports: 5th 
October 2017 

Homelessness 
Strategy 

Update on Strategy and 
Action Plan 

Neighbourhoods and 
Cooperatives (Safe, 
Strong and 
Sustainable 
Communities) 

 Requested by the 
Board in January 
2017 

 Street Charter Update on the 
implementation 

  Requested by the 
Board in October 
2016 

P
age 46



[O&S WP at 26/05/17 – 17/18 V1]        Page 3 of 5 

      

      

Tuesday, 28th 
November 2017 
6.00 p.m. 
 
Deadline for 
Reports: 16th 
November 2017 

Regeneration 
Projects 

Update to the Board Economy & 
Enterprise (A 
Regenerated 
Borough) 

 Update requested 
by the Board in 
November 2016 

 Greater Manchester 
Spatial Framework 

Update on the Development Neighbourhoods & 
Cooperatives (Safe, 
Strong and 
Sustainable 
Communities) 

 Update requested 
by the Board in 
November 2016 

 Academy 
Conversion and Free 
Schools  

Update to the Board Education and Early 
Years (A Working 
Borough) 

 Update requested 
by the Board in 
November 2016 
and March 2017 

 Generation Oldham Update and feedback on 
money saved through the 
scheme 

  Update requested 
by the Board in 
November 2016 

 Two Year Plan for 
Delivering the Offer 
to 2 Year Olds (Early 
Years) and 3 and 4 
year olds 

Update to included 
information regarding 
Looked After Children 

  Update requested 
by the Board in 
November 2016 

      

      

Tuesday, 16th 
January 2018 
6.00 p.m. 
 
Deadline for 
Reports: 4th 
January 2018 
 

Review of the Town 
Centre Parking 
Strategy 

Update on the Strategy and 
Parking Provision in the 
Town Centre 

Economy and 
Enterprise (Open for 
Business) 

 Update requested 
by the Board in 
January 2017. 

      

P
age 47



[O&S WP at 26/05/17 – 17/18 V1]        Page 4 of 5 

      

      

Tuesday, 6th 
March 2018 
6.00 p.m.  
 
Deadline for 
Reports: 
22nd February 
2018 
 

Selective Licensing 
Scheme 

Update on the impact of the 
scheme 

  Update requested 
by the Board in 
March 2017 

 Virtual School Update on the work of the 
Virtual School 

 1.  Update requested 
by the Board in 
Mach 2017 

 Inclusion Policy Update on the policy and 
strategy 

 2.  Update requested 
by the Board in 
March 2017 
 

    3.   

 

 

PART B – ONE OFF MEETINGS AND WORKSHOPS 
 

Date Title Summary of issue Directorate Timescales Notes Outcome 
TBC Improving 

Individual  
Electoral 
Registration  

Workshop Corporate 
and 
Commercial  

July 2017 A workshop was held on 14th November 
2016.  A further meeting was agreed to 
be held in June 2017. 

 

TBC Community 
Cohesion 

Workshop Health and 
Wellbeing 

   

       

 
 
PART C – OUTSTANDING ISSUES – DATES TO BE DETERMINED 
 

When 
Discussed 

Title Summary of issue Directorate Timescales Notes Outcome 

P
age 48



[O&S WP at 26/05/17 – 17/18 V1]        Page 5 of 5 

 Social Value 
Framework 

 Corporate and 
Commercial 

 An Update was requested by the Board in 
September 2016. 

 

 National Tree 
Week 

 Economy, Skills 
and 
Neighbourhoods 

 Raised by Councillor Williamson and 
agreed by Councillor Brownridge 

 

Council, 
September 
2016 

Making Oldham 
Council more 
Dementia 
Friendly 

 Health and 
Wellbeing 

 This issue is still progressing through 
Health Scrutiny.  A Task and Finish 
Group has been established and met 
in November and December.  In 
progress.  
 

 

       

       

       

       

 
PART D – ACTIONS FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS 

 

Date of Meeting Title of Report Directorate Action(s) Date Completed and Outcome 

 Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub HWB Visit to be arranged in September 
2017 

 

     

     

     

     
 

 

P
age 49



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

  1 

 

 
Purpose of the Report:  

 A report was presented to Overview and Scrutiny in January 2017 detailing the        
 background and progress of the improvement journey Children’s Services have been on   
 since the Ofsted SIF Inspection of May/ June 2015. 
 
A number of next steps were identified at January’s meeting and it was requested that this 
update report be presented at June’s Board. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Report to Overview and Scrutiny Board 

 
Children’s Social Care ‘Getting to Good’  
Improvement Plan Update 

 

 
Portfolio Holder: 
Cllr Jenny Harrison Cabinet Member for Social Care and 
Safeguarding 
 
Officer Contact: 
Maggie Kufeldt Executive Director of Health and Wellbeing 
 
Report of:  
Ed Francis Assistant Director of Safeguarding and Partnerships 
 

 

13th June 2017 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 51

Agenda Item 12



 

  2 

 

‘Getting to Good’ Continuous Improvement Plan 
 
1. Background 
 
1.1 Oldham Council’s Children’s Services were subject to a four-week SIF Inspection 

carried out by Ofsted in May/June 2015 which led to the service’s overall rating as; 
‘requiring improvement to be good.’ Although there were no widespread or serious 
failures, the authority was not yet delivering good protection and help for children, 
young people and families. 
 

1.2 In response to the judgement and recommendations from Ofsted, the Council 
developed an Improvement Plan to which the service has identified key actions to 
achieve in order to deliver improved outcomes for children and young people in 
need of help and protection. The purpose of the plan is to monitor and measure the 
impact of the key actions. Service leads who are accountable for each key action 
are required to update and review the priorities at a required frequency in order 
monitor progress. The plan also takes into account where impact needs to be 
demonstrated in order to evidence improvement therefore the plan has been 
recently reviewed and actions have been refined further for 2017 -18. 

 
 

1.3 A full independent review of Children’s Services is proposed for October 2017 in 
order to receive an independent view of how the authority has progressed on the 
improvement journey thus far.  
 

2. Current Position – June 2017 
 

2.1 Since the report in January 2017  we have continued to implement a number of key 
changes which support essential components of any Ofsted rated ‘good’ or 
‘outstanding’ authorities which include: 

 
Workforce 

 
- As part of the development of our workforce strategy we have completed a 

comprehensive review of workforce requirements building on the changes we have 
already introduced and highlighting the need to invest in more frontline social workers 
as well as key frontline manager posts. The aim in 2017/18 will be to evidence more 
consistency in the quality of practice as a result of these changes to the workforce.  
 

- We have also focused on enhancing the career prospects of the social workers. This 
has included looking at development pathways and preparing staff for appropriate 
opportunities as they arise, including shadowing, revising job descriptions and looking 
at rewarding staff where appropriate within policy.  
 

- The service has also signed up to the second cohort of the ‘Frontline’ social work 
graduate programme which has central government backing. In addition to bring high 
potential graduates and career changers to Oldham, the programme has introduced a 
systemic approach to social work practice which has a wider applicability across the 
service. 
 

Page 52



 

  3 

 

 
 

Management and Leadership Capacity 
 

- Recent appointments to five newly established Service Manager posts have now been 
made and the impact of these should be demonstrable within 2017/18. The post of 
Principle Social Worker has also been established which is a senior manager with 
lead responsibility for practice in the local authority and who is still actively involved in 
frontline practice and can report the views and experiences of the front line to all 
levels of management.  

 
Performance Management and Quality Assurance 

 
- Since January 2017 we have revised the monthly Performance Clinics to focus down 

on team and service level performance and increase the accountability and challenge 
to Team and Service Managers. Each team has a performance profile (13 in all) and 
the reasons for both poor and good performance are articulated within the profile and 
at the clinic meetings chaired by the Director of Social Care and Early Help. 
 

- There is also an improved understanding of the data in relation to children’s social 
care from social work level right through to the partnerships senior scrutiny body, the 
LSCB and challenge can be demonstrated at all levels in between. The use of the 
performance management framework is particularly important in terms of considering 
the impact of changes made to the services moving forward. It must be noted that 
previously the service have had an issue with data quality and little evidence on the 
system to evidence work being done. Introducing the performance management 
framework, there has been a greater understanding of why data must be recorded on 
the system as well as the quality of the data as this allows the service to understand 
the needs of the children and young people. Although, data quality still remains an 
issue for the service, the service strive to understand importance of quality and how 
this impacts on reporting (particularly reporting for statutory requirements such as the 
903 return)  

 
- A new Quality Assurance Framework was introduced in January 2017 and has 

already highlighted areas where improvement is still required for example the need for 
greater consistency in supervision. Audits are essential and integral to children’s 
social care as they will, in the near future, as part of the next proposed inspection 
regime, be shared with Ofsted and become a means by which they determine when a 
given local authority will be inspected. The service should be able to demonstrate that 
the service needs are understood based on the findings of audits (qualitative) and 
indication from performance data (quantitative).  

 
- The primary social care information system Framework i is to be migrated to a new 

system Mosaic in the next few weeks. The new system is easier for social workers 
and other staff to  

 
 
3. Key Improvement Priorities 2017/18   
  
3.1 Children’s Services are working towards the following in 2017/18:  

Page 53



 

  4 

 

 
- Ensuring that the workforce can meet the continued rising demand for children’s social 

care. Since the beginning of the financial year cases open to the service have 
continued to grow, and capacity to manage this is stretched (see table 1.1). Initial 
suggestions are that March data (currently requiring data quality checks) will show a 
further increase in our numbers 

 April 2016 January 2017 March 2017 

Children in Need 1116 (59.65%) 1415 (65.42%) 2435 (75%) 

Child Protection 335 (17.9%) 291 (13.45%) 324 (9.9%) 

Children Looked 
After 

420 (22.45%) 457 (21.13%) 487 (15%) 

Total Cases 1871 2163 3246 
Table 1.1 cases open to children’s social care 

- Develop a performance culture in respect of the care leavers service to ensure 
managers can utilise data to manage their teams better on a day to day basis and to 
fully evidence that service improvement work is having the desired impact 
 

- Develop an action plan to strengthen transition planning for disabled care leavers and 
other young people with complex needs so that they receive all the services they are 
entitled to, including support from the aftercare service 
 

- Ensure that the work of Independent Reviewing Officers (IROs) demonstrates that 
they are robustly challenging plans for children where there is drift and gathering the 
views of children before statutory meetings 
 

- Monitor the impact of work undertaken to ensure the pupil premium is used to best 

effect by schools to enhance children’s and young people’s learning  

 

4    Next Steps  

 
4.1 There remain a number of challenges before the authority can be confident that the 

service are delivering good protection and help to the children and young people of 
Oldham. The following are reoccurring themes that have been identified through 
audit findings and data analysis: 

 

 Further work is required to strengthen the management ‘grip’ within the service as 
management oversight still remains to be a key issue  

 There has been an increase in the number of caseloads with the average caseload 
being at 27 per social worker which is a barrier to effective practice improvement 

 Social worker turnover rates and locum staff remain a concern particularly in the 
Children’s Assessment Teams 

 Quality of practice and recording is variable and therefore limits evidence of good 
work and practice 

 Evidence of learning from quality assurance is not yet embedded in practice 

Page 54



 

  5 

 

 There is still evidence of ‘drift’ in the system which demonstrates lack of timely and 
effective outcomes as well as it being costly 

 
 
4.2 The Children’s Assurance Group continues to monitor progress against 

improvement on a monthly basis. The Portfolio Holder, Councillor Harrison, 
continues to receive regular updates at her KiT meetings too.  

 
4.3 Working with an independent advisor, the Council is preparing itself for an 

independent review of Children’s Services in October 2017.  
 
 
5.         Links to Corporate Outcomes 
 
5.1 Working towards the improvement of our Children’s Services demonstrates we 

have a resident focus, are working with our partners to improve outcomes for the 
benefit of the whole Borough and safeguarding our children, leading to a safer and 
more confident community. 

 
6 Additional Supporting Information 
 
6.1 Not applicable 
 
 
7 Consultation 
 
7.1 Not applicable 
 

 
8 Appendices  
 
8.1 Not applicable 
 

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  1 

 

 
Purpose of the Report:  

To update Overview and Scrutiny Board in relation to the annual data return for 2016/17 
Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards, the current position in Oldham and areas of 
development.  
 
Recommendations: 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Board are asked to note the update on the return, the current 
position and areas of development. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Report to Overview and Scrutiny Board 

 
Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) Update 

 

 
Portfolio Holder: 
Cllr Jenny Harrison Cabinet Member for Social Care and 
Safeguarding 
 
Officer Contact: 
Mark Warren Director of Adult Social Care 
 
Report of:  
Michelle Barnes – Safeguarding and DoLS Lead 
 

 

13th June 2017 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 57

Agenda Item 13



 

  2 

 

Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards Update 
 
1. Background 
 
1.1 The Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) aim to protect people who lack 

mental capacity, but who need to be legally deprived of liberty so they can be given 
care and treatment in a hospital or care home. If a person‟s right to liberty needs to 
be infringed in other settings, an authorisation must be obtained from the Court of 
Protection. 

1.2 The DoLS have been criticised since they were introduced for being overly complex 
and excessively bureaucratic. In March 2014, a House of Lords Select Committee 
published a detailed report concluding that the DoLS were “not fit for purpose” and 
recommended that they be replaced.  However at the same time (March 2014) a 
case in the United Kingdom Supreme Court held that far greater numbers of people 
needed to be dealt with under the DoLS system. The ruling in the cases of P v 
Cheshire West and Chester Council and P&Q v Surrey County Council threw out 
previous judgements that had defined deprivation of liberty more restrictively. The 
person‟s compliance or lack of objection to their placement, the purpose of it or the 
extent to which it enables them to live a relatively normal life for someone with their 
level of disability, were all deemed irrelevant to whether they were deprived of their 
liberty or not. . 

           This means that many people have been deprived of their liberty unlawfully and 
without safeguards in settings including care homes, hospitals and supported living 
placements. This has placed increasing burdens on local authorities and health and 
social care practitioners administering the DoLS. All people who lack the capacity to 
make decisions about their care and residence and, under the responsibility of the 
state, are subject to continuous supervision and control and lack the option to leave 
their care setting, are deprived of their liberty, as a consequence of the court ruling. 

. 

1.3 A range of issues have been apparent since the ruling including for example; 
 

  A tremendous pressure on Local Authority‟s budgets as a consequence of scaling 
up to enable the development of an infrastructure to commission assessments 

 Many Local Authority‟s being in breach of the legislative timeframes for 
authorization ( or not) as a consequence of a lack of resources 

 Unintended consequences such as Coroners having to investigate the death of all 
people on a DOL as they are currently defined as being in `state detention‟ at the 
time of death. This causes unnecessary further stresses for families. It is worth 
noting that this has recently changed and is no longer an automatic requirement. 

 Having a sufficient number of trained Best Interest Assessors ( BIA`s), Signatories   
and Section 12 Doctors to complete the necessary authorisation process 

 Some process confusion for example in the early stages when to apply for a DOLs 
as opposed to a Mental Health Act section and  has been the subject of much 
debate 

 
 
 

Page 58



 

  3 

 

1.4 Law Commission Proposals 
 

1.4.1 The commission has now published its final report and draft legislation for a new 
system to authorise care placements involving deprivation of liberty for people 
lacking capacity. The commission believes its proposed Liberty Protection 
Safeguards (LPS) scheme will be less onerous than the DoLS while still offering 
human rights protections. 

 

1.4.2 There was a breakfast meeting in London on Tuesday (14/03/2017) morning 
(where Alex Ruck Keane – the main author of the Bill spoke from the 39 Essex 
street offices in London).  Cheshire East Legal team had contacted the chambers 
and a briefing session was held in Manchester on the 27th March  

See attachment -  
Mental Capacity 

Doc.pdf  

 

1.4.3 The Liberty Protection Safeguards (LPS) to replace the current Deprivation of 

Liberty Safeguard (DoLS)  

1.4.4 The LPS would cover a broader group of people than the DoLS, which is restricted 

to placements in care homes and hospitals. LPS can authorise the return of a 

person to the setting/establishment if they have absconded. 

1.4.5 Firstly, the LPS would apply to any setting that might give rise to a deprivation of 

liberty, including shared lives schemes and supported living. 

1.4.6 While the scope of the LPS is broader than the DoLS, it would involve a two-tier 

system of protections whereas the DoLS provides the same checks to all cases. 

1.4.7 Under the current system, every DoLS case is coordinated by best interests 

assessors (BIAs), typically specially trained social workers.  

1.4.8 Under the LPS, the BIA role would be revised to a new „Approved Mental Capacity 

Professional‟ (AMCP) role and the requirement for a best interest‟s assessment in 

every case is dropped. AMCPs would only be focused only on more “serious” 

cases where care arrangements are contrary to the person‟s wishes. 

1.4.9 When a potential deprivation of liberty is identified, the responsible body, in social 

care cases a local authority, would be required to arrange a capacity assessment, a 

medical assessment and a check that the proposed care placement is „necessary 

and proportionate‟ (in effect the latter replaces the „best interests‟ assessment). The 

council would be required to consult with friends or family of the person. . Hospital 

settings /palliative care two clinicians would undertake an assessment and they 

could authorise a LPS for 28days, if needed to be extended it would then be 

referred to the AMCP 

Page 59



 

  4 

 

1.4.10 Every case would then be checked by an „independent reviewer‟, an employee of 

the responsible body who is not involved in the person‟s care. If the reviewer felt 

the conditions for an authorisation are met then they could approve it. However, if 

there are concerns the proposed placement is against the person‟s wishes then the 

case would be referred to an AMCP. The AMCP would be required to meet with the 

person and scrutinise the assessments carried out before determining whether to 

authorise the placement or not.  

The Commission’s report highlighted; 

“The Approved Mental Capacity Professional would be expected to consider matters using their own 

professional judgment rather than simply to consider whether those conducting the assessments could 

reasonably reach the conclusions that they did. The obligations upon them are therefore more onerous than 

upon the independent reviewer,” 

1.4.11 The commission also highlighted its system would ensure “greater prominence” is 

given to the person‟s human rights during the care planning stages and help cut 

“unnecessary duplication” by taking previous assessments into account. 

It said the widespread reports of case backlogs and breached statutory timescales 

since the Cheshire West ruling meant that any notion the DoLS could be “patched 

up to cope” was not sustainable. 

“Article 5 rights must be practical and effective. It is not acceptable to continue with 

the current system where many people‟s rights have become theoretical and 

illusory,” the report said. 

1.4.12 The commission also recommended wider reforms to improve decision-making 

across the Mental Capacity Act, not just in cases involving deprivation of liberty. 

The MCA proposals would place a requirement on decision-makers to place 

greater weight on the person‟s wishes and feelings when making decision under 

the act and confirm in writing that they had complied with the act. 

It is now up to the government to decide whether to take the commission‟s 

recommendations forward. 

Law Commissioner Nicolas Paines QC said: “It‟s not right that people with 

dementia and learning disabilities are being denied their freedoms unlawfully. 

There are unnecessary costs and backlogs at every turn, and all too often family 

members are left without the support they need. 

“The Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards were designed at a time when considerably 

fewer people were considered deprived of their liberty. Now they are failing those 

they were set up to protect. The current system needs to be scrapped and replaced 

right away.” 

Page 60



 

  5 

 

1.4.13   As from April 4th 2017, there is no longer the automatic requirement for the 
Coroner to investigate the deaths of any one who is under a DoLS. This is positive 
news, in that families will not have to endure unnecessary distress. 

 
 
1.5 Benefits related to the proposals 
 
1.5.1 The allocated worker will be responsible for the assessment which would be more 

positive for the individual and their families prior to care arrangements being 

agreed. 

1.5.2 The hospital and the CCG completing their own assessments would ensure a more 

timely response to the deprivation, however there may be wider system benefits for 

the hospital and the CCG to commission the Council to undertake this function on 

their behalf. 

1.5.3 The proposals ensure 16-18 year olds are safeguarded as needed.  

1.5.4 Extension of the LPS for up to 3 years will reduce cost and demand. 

 

1.6  Points to consider 

1.6.1 Possible additional training required for the workforce/providers. 

1.6.2 Assessment forms would need to be revised alongside amendments to Mosaic. 

1.6.3 There could be significant workload implications in relation to supported living and 

other non-residential settings. 

1.6.4 AMCP holding caseloads to ensure reviews are completed could impact on work 

load and overall capacity. 

1.6.5 Covering community setting will increase cost and demand. 

 
2. The Current Position of DoLS in Oldham  
 
2.1 Using the ADASS guidance, the DoLS work is prioritized by allocating any 

applications where the person is asking or attempting to leave the establishment, 
where any restrictions i.e.: 1:1 supervision is taking place, where restraint is 
needed and more recently, where covert medication is administered. DoLS 
renewals are also prioritized so that the person remains on the DoLS, rather than 
it running out and there being a gap between it being re-applied, which was 
previously happening.  See Appendix A 

 
2.2    Twelve months ago, Oldham had a waiting list of approximately 300+ applications 

to be allocated. We currently do not have a backlog, as these have all been 
allocated to independent and internal BIA‟s. Urgent applications are allocated as 

Page 61



 

  6 

 

they come in and standards and renewals are allocated once a week. As far as 
we are aware, there is only one other council who no longer have a backlog, but 
they used an agency to clear this for them. 

 
2.3 Oldham currently have approximately 24 internal BIA‟s, but due to various 

reasons, including capacity as a result of existing workloads, there are usually 
around 10 – 15 BIA‟s that can take allocations, which amounts to one per month. 
We have a number of independent BIA‟s that cover different areas, but there are 
10 that we use on a regular basis. Independent BIA‟s are usually used for any 
urgent applications that are received, as they are able to deliver a quicker turn 
around. Children‟s Social Workers have also recently been recruited as BIA‟s. 

 
2.4 Whilst Oldham was allocated £750k for the DoLS, half of this was allocated to 

support Early Help. The remaining balance is used to pay for independent BIA‟s, 
Section 12 Doctors, internal BIA‟s who do overtime, training purposes and we are 
also planning to invest in resources to promote the awareness of DoLS across the 
borough, which in turn will support care homes in particular in meeting the 
regulations enforced by the Care Quality Commissions. 

 

2.5 Challenges to Date 

2.5.1 Some internal Best Interest Assessors (BIA‟s) are struggling to meet the 

requirement to undertake 1 assessment per month, due to the pressures on their 

workload. 

2.5.2 Independent BIA‟s charge different rates per assessment – we are going to review 

this and make proposals to AMM to introduce a set fee across all. 

 

2.5.3 As the backlog has been cleared, this has had an impact on the increase of 

assessments that need to be quality checked. This in turn, has an impact on the 

authorisation forms (form 5‟s) that need completing and there are a high number 

waiting to be created. One of our business support officers was successful in 

securing a fixed term role as a second DoLS coordinator, which will help with the 

demand, but backfill needs to be undertaken before new duties can be fulfilled. 

There are 84 Form 5‟s that need completing as we have only had one person able 

to do this piece of work. This should reduce now that we have 2 coordinators. 

 

2.5.4 There is also a high number of DoLS waiting to be authorised, due to the amount 

that have been completed and the small number of signatories that we had. More 

signatories are undertaking the DoLS training, which will help with demand 

management. There are currently 145 DoLS waiting to be signed off, but now that 

there is an increase in who can signs these off, again this number should reduce 

significantly. 

 

2.5.5 All data is now input onto frameworki and subject to monthly performance reporting 

Page 62



 

  7 

 

 

 

3. DoLS Return 2016/17 

 

3.1 This section contains highlights from the main findings of the 2016/17 Deprivation 
of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) Return for Oldham. The DoLS data collection, led by 
NHS Digital, gathers information on all DoLS applications in England on an annual 
basis. 
 

3.2 Information collected in the return provides an estimate of the number of individuals 
subject to a DoLS authorisation as well as the number of active DoLS cases in 
England for the 2016-17 reporting year. A case is defined as active from the 
moment the DoLS request is received by the council. 

 
 

Key Findings 
 

3.3 In 2016/17 there was a total of 647 new DoLS applications received between 1 
April 2016 and 31 March 2017, this is an increase in comparison to 2015/16, where 
we received a total of 435 new applications. 

 
3.4 There were a significantly higher number of applications granted during 2016/17 

with a total of 330 applications, in comparison to 2015/16 where there was a total of 
205 granted. 

 
3.5 The number of applications not completed as at 31 March 2017 has significantly 

increased to 318 in comparison to 31 March 2016 where there were a total of 215 
not completed. 

 
3.6 In 2016/17 there were a total of 197 urgent applications received, which is a 

decrease in comparison to 2015/16 where we had a total of 220 urgent applications 
received. 

 
3.7 In the 2016/17 there was a total of 829 applications, which includes new and any 

outstanding applications, from this total there was a total of 647 new DoLS 
applications that were received between 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 and the 
remaining 182 applications were received during 2015/16 but did not get signed off 
until after 1 April 2016.   

 
  

Page 63



 

  8 

 

 

New DoLS Applications Received 2015-16 2016-17 

April 30 58 

May 35 42 

June 30 49 

July 25 44 

August 25 69 

September 35 29 

October 25 51 

November 45 65 

December 65 31 

January 40 85 

February 50 69 

March 25 55 

Total Received in Year 435 647 

 

3.8 In 2016/17 there was a total of 647 new DoLS applications received between 1 
April 2016 and 31 March 2017, this is an increase in comparison to 2015/16, where 
we received a total of 435 new applications. In 2016/17 we received the highest 
number of new applications (85) during January 2017 and the least number (29) 
during September 2016.  

 
 
 

 
2015-16 2016-17 

Applications not completed as at 31 March 215 318 

 

3.9 The number of applications not completed as at 31 March 2017 has significantly 
increased to 318 in comparison to 31 March 2016 where there were a total of 215 
not completed. 

  

Page 64



 

  9 

 

 
 

DoLS Applications Granted 2015-16 2016-17 

April 5 5 

May 10 12 

June 0 15 

July 10 40 

August 15 61 

September 5 4 

October 15 34 

November 20 20 

December 25 23 

January 15 24 

February 5 60 

March 75 32 

Not Known 5 N/A 

Total Applications Granted in Year 205 330 

 
 

3.10 There were a significantly higher number of applications granted during 2016/17 
with a total of 330 applications, in comparison to 2015/16 where there was a total of 
205 granted. The highest number of applications was granted during August 2016, 
where there were 61 granted and the least number of 4 were granted during 
September 2016. 

 

 
 

 
2015-16 2016-17 

Urgent Applications received 220 197 

 

3.11 In 2016/17 there were a total of 197 urgent applications received, which is a 
decrease in comparison to 2015/16 where we had a total of 220 urgent applications 
received.  

  

Page 65



 

  10 

 

 
 

  2016/17 

Male 118 

Female 212 

Total Applications Granted 330 

 
 

 
3.12 In 2016/17 there were a higher number of females that were granted a DoLS 

Application with a total of 212 applications in comparison to the number granted for 
males with a total of 118. 
 
 
 

  2016/17 

White 315 

Mixed/Multiple Ethnic Groups 1 

Asian/Asian British 6 

Black/Black British 4 

Other Ethnic Origin 1 

Undeclared/Not Known 3 

Total Applications Granted 330 

 
 

3.13 In 2016/17 the highest numbers of granted applications for service users were from 
a White ethnic origin. The lowest numbers were from a Mixed/Multiple Ethnic 
Groups and Other Ethnic Origin. 

 
 
4.         Links to Corporate Outcomes 
 
4.1 Co-operative Values 

The issues set out in this paper accord with the Council‟s co-operative values as 

set out in the Co-operative Charter, in particular those of fairness, responsibility, 

working together and accountability.   

 

Page 66



 

  11 

 

4.2 Oldham Plan 2015-18 priorities  

One of the priority outcomes of the Health and Wellbeing Commissioning Cluster is 

“Keep vulnerable children and adults safe”, and DoLS and the proposed LPS have 

direct relevance to this outcome.  

4.3 Corporate Plan 2015-18 

The issues set out in this paper relate to a number of objectives and outcomes 

within the Corporate Plan 2015-18: 

 

Objectives Outcomes 

 

Objective 2 – Confident communities Healthy communities 

 

Safe, strong and sustainable 

communities 

Objective 3 – A co-operative council Getting the basics right 

 

Responsible with resources 

 

4.4 Adult Social Care Business Plan 2017-18 

Safeguarding Adults and Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards are key elements of the 

2017-18 Adult Social Care Business Plan. 

 

 
5. Additional Supporting Information 
 
5.1 Not applicable 
 
 
6 Consultation 
 
6.1 Not applicable 
 

 
 

7. Appendices  

Page 67



 

  12 

 

 
APPENDIX A 
 
ADASS Screening Tool 

 

Due to the vast increase in demand for assessments under the Deprivation of Liberty 

Safeguards the ADASS task force members have shared practice in relation to 

prioritisation and produced this screening tool. The aim of the tool is to assist Councils to 

respond in a timely manner to those requests which have the highest priority. The tool 

sets out the criteria most commonly applied which indicates that an urgent response may 

be needed so as to safeguard the individuals concerned. The use of this tool must be 

balanced against the legal criteria for the Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards which remains 

unchanged. The criteria should be used as an indicative guide only as it will generally be 

based on information provided by the Managing Authority in the application and each case 

must be judged on its own facts. 

 

HIGHER MEDIUM LOWER 

 Psychiatric or Acute 

Hospital and not free to 

leave 

 Continuous 1:1 care 

during the day and/or 

night 

 Sedation/medication 

used frequently to 

control behaviour 

 Physical restraint used 

regularly – equipment 

or persons 

 Restrictions on 

family/friend contact (or 

other Article8 issue) 

 Objections from 

relevant person (verbal 

or physical) 

 Objections from family/ 

friends 

 Attempts to leave 

 Confinement to a 

particular part of the 

establishment for 

considerable period of 

time 

 New or unstable 

placement 

 Asking to leave but not 

consistently 

 Not making any active 

attempts to leave 

 Appears to be unsettled 

some of the time 

 Restraint or medication 

used infrequently 

 Appears to meet some 

but not all aspects of 

the acid test 

 Minimal evidence of 

control and supervision 

 No specific restraints or 

restrictions being used. 

E.G. in a care home not 

objecting. No additional 

restrictions in place 

 Have been living in the 

care home for some 

time (at least a year) 

 Settled placement n 

care home/hospital 

placement, no evidence 

of objection etc. but 

may meet the 

requirements of the 

acid test 

 End of life situations, 

intensive care 

situations which may 

meet the acid test but 

there will be no benefit 

to the person from the 

Safeguards 

Page 68



 

  13 

 

 

 Possible challenge to 

Court of Protection or 

Complaint 

 Already subject to DoL 

about to expire 

 

 

 

 

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



 

 

1 

 

  
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
Purpose of the Report 
The current Corporate Plan was agreed in 2015 and covered the period up to 2020. With the 
breadth of changes made to the Oldham Plan and other significant changes in the Council’s 
approach, the Corporate Plan has had to be reviewed.  
 
The Corporate Plan is due to be approved at Full Council in July. An approval timeline is included 
in this report. Please also note that the Oldham Plan was approved by the Partnership on 3 May 
2017 and will be sent to Cabinet and Full Council alongside the Corporate Plan for endorsement. 
 
Recommendations 
Overview and Scrutiny are asked to: 

 Note the proposed Corporate Plan update (Appendix 1) and provide any final feedback. 

 Note the crosscheck against cabinet portfolio areas and administration priorities (at 
Appendix 2) and provide any final feedback. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Report to OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 

 
Updating the Corporate Plan 
 

Portfolio Holder:  
Councillor Jean Stretton, Leader of the Council 
 
Officer Contact:  Carolyn Wilkins, Chief Executive 
 
Report Author:  Jackie Wilson (Head of Strategy, Partnerships 
and Policy) 
Ext. 5755 
 
13 June 2017 

Page 97

Agenda Item 14



 

  2 

Overview and Scrutiny Board 13 June 2017 
 
Updating the Corporate Plan 
 
1.1 The current Corporate Plan was agreed in 2015 and covered the period up to 2020. With 

the breadth of changes made to the Oldham Plan and other significant changes in the 
Council’s approach, the Corporate Plan has had to be reviewed.  

 
1.2 The Plan has been refreshed in respect of a number of factors: 

 In light of the new Oldham Plan priorities, the corporate objectives have been 
reviewed for fit and language. 

 Ensuring the plan still reflects the current organisational priorities and reflects key 
changes such as the GM Devolution Agreement. 

 There has also been the opportunity to align the Corporate Plan to the emerging 
corporate messaging around articulating the co-operative deal: #ourbit #yourbit 
#result. 

 Its suitability to inform business planning and provide continued direction to 
employees, to inform decision making and inform budget priorities, as the Council 
continues to navigate a period of transition and transformation.  

 
1.3  The draft update of the Corporate Plan objectives and outcomes is attached at Appendix 

1 for comment and approval to progress to Cabinet. It shows the reworked corporate 
objectives with the new ‘#ourbit, #yourbit’ wording. The corporate outcomes have become 
the ‘#result’. Appendix 2 shows how the Cabinet portfolios and the administration priorities 
(agreed in March) cut against the Corporate Plan. 

 
1.4 Once the Corporate Plan has been approved the ruby-coloured brochure and the the 

Corporate Plan micro-site will be updated. 
 
2 Current Position 
 
2.1 It is proposed that the Corporate Plan is due to be approved via the following route: 
 

 
Meeting Date Report 

deadline 

Council 12 July 4 July 

Cabinet 19 June 9 June 

Scrutiny 13 June 5 June 

 
2.2 Please note that the Oldham Plan was approved by the Partnership on 3 May 2017 and 

will be sent to Cabinet and Full Council alongside the Corporate Plan for endorsement. 
 

 
3 Key Questions for Overview and Scrutiny to Consider 
 
3.1 Overview and Scrutiny are asked to provide any feedback or comments on the proposed 

Corporate Plan update at Appendix 1 or the cross-cut of the cabinet portfolios and 
administration priorities at Appendix 2.  

 
 
4. Links to Corporate Outcomes 
 
4.1 This report relates to the updating of the corporate outcomes. Therefore this report links to 

the corporate outcomes in their entirety. 

Page 98



 

  3 

 
 
5. Consultation 
 
5.1 Consultation on the draft has taken place at Cabinet Member Portfolio meetings and 

Directorate Management Team Meetings. An Elected Member Overview and Scrutiny-led 
workshop has also taken place. 

 
Financial implications 

 
5.2 All the actions that are included within the corporate plan to be delivered against corporate 

objectives will be financed by approved resources.  Ensuring that there is continued 
sustainability going forward will form a key part of the on-going budget setting process and 
medium term financial strategy. 

 
5.3 There will, however, be further downward pressure on Council budgets as a result of 

Government spending plans.  This may require the revisiting of actions and the 
subsequent realignment of resources.  The requirements can only be clarified once 
announcements have been made by Central Government. (Anne Ryans) 

 
Legal implications 

 
5.4 The Corporate Plan requires to be approved by full Council. (Paul Entwistle) 
 
 
6 Appendices  
 
6.1 Appendix 1 – Proposed Corporate Plan updates - DRAFT 
 
6.2 Appendix 2 - Cabinet and administration priorities cross-check - DRAFT 
 

Page 99



Appendix 1 – Proposed Corporate Plan updates - DRAFT 
 

4 

 

 

 An Inclusive Economy 
where people and enterprise thrive 

Thriving Communities 
where everyone is empowered to do their bit 

Co-operative Services 
with people and social value at their heart 

#ourbit: Attracting investment and 
encouraging business and enterprise to thrive 
 
#yourbit: Supporting and promoting local 
businesses and ventures  
 
#result: Oldham is open for business 

#ourbit: Increasing the sense of involvement 
and ownership of issues that affect people 
and they care about 
 
#yourbit: Getting involved in your community: 
actively sharing ideas and experience with 
others about things you are passionate about 
  
#result: Engaging and resilient 
communities 

#ourbit: Building a sustainable co-operative 
workforce that innovates based on the principle 
of being equal partners and co-creators  
#yourbit: Taking an active role by working with 
others in shaping better outcomes and making 
them happen 
  
#result: A Co-operative workforce 

#ourbit: Delivering key regeneration projects 
that are growing our business base, creating 
jobs and transforming opportunities   
 
#yourbit: Visiting the attractions and 
promoting them as ambassadors  
  
#result: A regenerating and confident 
borough 
. 

#ourbit: Working proactively with residents 
and partners in promoting healthy, 
independent lifestyles and providing the right 
level of care at the right time 
 
#yourbit: Living well, eating healthily, 
inspiring others and getting the right support 
at the right time and place  
  
#result: Healthier communities 

#ourbit: Putting social value and 
transformational outcomes at the heart of all 
our services 
#yourbit: Telling us where services are not 
delivering the right outcomes for you and your 
community 
 
#result: Outcome-driven services 
 

#ourbit: Working with partners to create 
quality work prospects - and ensuring all 
residents can access new skills and 
opportunities and be work-ready  
 
#yourbit: Making the most of the education 
and skills offer and aiming to better yourself 
  
#result: An ambitious and socially mobile 
borough 

#ourbit: Nurturing and safeguarding strong 
neighbourhoods that work together to improve 
their lives and the communities around them  
 
#yourbit: Working with other residents to 
build strong networks that are shaping the 
future where you live  
 
#result: Safer, stronger and striving 
communities 

#ourbit: Reforming public services and 
encouraging innovation, leading to better 
outcomes and delivery  
#yourbit: Getting involved and having your say 
in designing future public services  
 
#result: Empowering the positive reform of 
public services  

P
age 100



Appendix 2 – Cabinet and administration priorities cross-check - DRAFT 
 

5 

 

An Inclusive Economy where people and enterprise thrive 
 

Corporate Plan messaging Cabinet portfolio area (Cabinet Member) Priorities that fall within each objective 

#ourbit: Attracting investment and 
encouraging business and enterprise 
to thrive 
 
#yourbit: Supporting and promoting 
local businesses and ventures  
 
#result: Oldham is open for 
business 
 

Enterprise and business support (JS) 
City region and devolution (JS) 
Capital projects and investment (JS) 
Oldham Town Centre and markets (JS) 
Tourism and events (JS) 
Culture and Arts (BB) 
Libraries, Heritage and Local Studies (BB) 
Transport (FH) 
 

 Invest in Tommyfield Market Hall 

 Fight for better transport links at Greater 
Manchester level for Metrolink direct to Piccadilly 

 Support existing and attract new businesses from 
high-profile retailers to independent traders 

 Extend free weekend car parking in town centre 
beyond 2016 

 Invest £37m in new primary and secondary 
school facilities 

 Deliver an exciting calendar of cultural events and 
attractions and enhance the tourism offer through 
Parliament Square and other locations and 
facilities 

 Deliver Oldham’s Cultural Quarter including new 
Oldham Coliseum Theatre, Arts & Heritage 
Centre  

 Invest in Queen Elizabeth Hall to create a high 
quality venue for events and conferences  

 Complete regeneration of Prince’s Gate 

 Build a range of high quality affordable and 
aspirational housing  

 Continue to invest in Royton Town Hall and town 
centre 

 Maintain 24-hour road repair promise for Priority 
Routes  

 Every school ‘good or outstanding’ by 2020  

 Identify key employment sites to secure new job 
opportunities and investment.  

 Get Oldham Working to engage with 6,000 
residents and fill 5,000 new employment-related 
opportunities by 2020   

#ourbit: Delivering key regeneration 
projects that are growing our business 
base, creating jobs and transforming 
opportunities   
 
#yourbit: Visiting the attractions and 
promoting them as ambassadors  
  
#result: A regenerating and 
confident borough 
. 

Regeneration and infrastructure (JS) 
Capital projects and investment (JS) 
Oldham Town Centre and markets (JS) 
Tourism and events (JS) 
Employment and employability (SA) 
Culture and Arts (BB) 
Libraries, Heritage and Local Studies (BB) 
Strategic Housing (BB) 
Planning and Building Control (BB) 
Transport (FH) 
Highways (FH) 
Low Carbon and Energy Saving (AJ) 

#ourbit: Working with partners to 
create quality work prospects - and 
ensuring all residents can access new 
skills and opportunities and be work-
ready  
 
#yourbit: Making the most of the 
education and skills offer and aiming 
to better yourself 
  

Enterprise and business support (JS) 
City region and devolution (JS) 
Inclusive growth (JS) 
Education (AC) 
Early Years (AC) 
Education and Skills Commission (AC) 
School place planning (AC) 
Looked after Children - Educational 
Performance (AC) 
Get Oldham Working (SA) 

P
age 101



 

  6 

#result: An ambitious and socially 
mobile borough 
 

Employment and employability (SA) 
GM Area Review (SA) 
Work and Skills Strategy (SA) 
Skills and Lifelong Learning (SA) 
Apprenticeships (SA) 

 Encourage ‘In work’ progression to help at least 
400 residents to move up the career ladder 
(Career Advancement Service) 

 All performance indicators for education to be at 
national average or above by 2020  

 Fight for a Fair Employment borough 

 Support Oldham Education Partnership Board in 
delivering all the recommendations of Education 
and Skills Commission  

 Focus on raising standards in reading, writing and 
mathematics.  

 Be  a strong voice in Greater Manchester for Fair 
Growth – equality of opportunities and 
investment; fight poverty 

 Encourage investment in green and renewable 
technology to produce clean power and create 
jobs 

 

Thriving communities where everyone is empowered to do their bit 
 

Corporate Plan messaging Cabinet portfolio area (Cabinet Member) Priorities that fall within each objective 

#ourbit: Increasing the sense of 
involvement and ownership of issues 
that affect people and they care about 
 
#yourbit: Getting involved in your 
community: actively sharing ideas and 
experience with others about things 
you are passionate about 
  
#result: Engaging and resilient 
communities 
 

Corporate property and assets (Asset transfer 
and use of assets) (JS) 
Member development and support 
(Community Leadership) (JS) 
Skills and Lifelong Learning (SA) 
District executives (BB) 
Libraries, Heritage and Local Studies (BB) 
Culture and Arts (BB) 
WW1 and Armed Forces Covenant (BB) 
Community Engagement – inc. GOG and 
Changing Behaviours (BB) 
Early Help (BB) 

 Through our Welfare Rights Service support 
people adversely affected by Welfare Reform 

 Ensure children and young people are  school 
ready, work ready and life ready  

 Extend the National Award winning Warm Homes 
Oldham Programme 

 Support people to live independent lives for 
longer in their own homes 

 Develop an integrated health and care system 
which supports healthy choices and challenges 
inequalities  

 Ensure our children in care get our parental 
support until the age of 25 

 Maintain an outstanding estate of leisure centres 

#ourbit: Working proactively with 
residents and partners in promoting 
healthy, independent lifestyles and 

City region and devolution (JS) 
Early Years (AC) 
GM Childrens Services Review (AC) 

P
age 102



 

  7 

providing the right level of care at the 
right time 
 
#yourbit: Living well, eating healthily, 
inspiring others and getting the right 
support at the right time and place  
  
#result: Healthier communities 
 

Adult Social Services (JH) 
Disability Services (JH) 
Adaptations (JH) 
Oldham Locality Plan (EM) 
Health Improvement (EM) 
Public Health (EM) 
Mental Health (EM) 
Fit for Oldham (EM) 
Leisure report (EM) 
Early Help (BB) 

and sporting opportunities for all 

 Challenge the stigma of mental health 

 Commit to preserving and enhancing the quality 
of our environment through: 
o Britain in Bloom 
o Green Dividend 
o Prosecuting fly tippers and people who drop 

litter  

 Use the Private Landlord Licensing Scheme to 
improve the quality of private sector housing 

 Continue to develop cooperative communities 
where people support each other 

#ourbit: Nurturing and safeguarding 
strong neighbourhoods that work 
together to improve their lives and the 
communities around them  
 
#yourbit: Working with other 
residents to build strong networks that 
are shaping the future where you live  
 
#result: Safer, stronger and striving 
communities 
 

Corporate property and assets (Asset transfer 
and use of assets) (JS) 
Member development and support 
(Community Leadership) (JS) 
Adult safeguarding (JH) 
Adoption and fostering (JH) 
Children and Young People in care (JH) 
Children and Young People Safeguarding 
(JH) 
Family Support (JH) 
District executives (BB) 
Community Safety and policing (BB) 
Community Cohesion (BB) 
Community Engagement – inc. GOG and 
Changing Behaviours (BB) 
Youth Service (BB) 
First Response (BB) 
Strategic Housing (BB) 
Housing enforcement (BB) 
Planning and Building Control (BB) 
Early Help (BB) 
Environmental Services and Enforcement 
(BB) 
Licensing (FH) 
Trading Standards (FH) 
Registrars and cemeteries (FH) 
Gritting (FH) 

P
age 103



 

  8 

Car Parking enforcement (FH) 
Street Lighting (FH) 
Revenues and Benefits (AJ) 
Welfare, advice and guidance (AJ) 

 

Co-operative services with people and social value at their heart 
 

Corporate Plan messaging Cabinet portfolio area (Cabinet Member) Priorities that fall within each objective 

#ourbit: Building a sustainable co-
operative workforce that innovates 
based on the principle of being equal 
partners and co-creators  
 
#yourbit: Taking an active role by 
working with others in shaping better 
outcomes and making them happen 
  
#result: A Co-operative workforce 
 

Member development and support (JS) 
District executives (BB) 
Community Engagement – inc. GOG and 
Changing Behaviours (BB) 
Provider Services (JH) 
Early Help (BB) 
HR and Organisational Development (AJ) 
Council Workforce – In Work progression (AJ) 

 Every school ‘good or outstanding’ by 2020  

 Fight for a Fair Employment borough 

 Ensure children and young people are  school 
ready, work ready and life ready  

 Support Oldham Education Partnership Board in 
delivering all the recommendations of Education 
and Skills Commission  

 Be  a strong voice in Greater Manchester for Fair 
Growth – equality of opportunities and 
investment; fight poverty 

 Encourage investment in green and renewable 
technology to produce clean power and create 
jobs 

 Develop an integrated health and care system 
which supports healthy choices and challenges 
inequalities  

 Continue to develop cooperative communities 
where people support each other 

 

#ourbit: Putting social value and 
transformational outcomes at the heart 
of all our services 
 
#yourbit: Telling us where services are 
not delivering the right outcomes for 
you and your community 
 
#result: Outcome-driven services 
 

Adult Social Services (JH) 
Adult safeguarding (JH) 
Provider Services (JH) 
Disability Services (JH) 
Adaptations (JH) 
Adoption and fostering (JH) 
Finance (AJ) 
Low Carbon and Energy Saving (AJ) 
Customer Services (AJ) 
Commissioning and Procurement (AJ) 

#ourbit: Reforming public services and 
encouraging innovation, leading to 
better outcomes and delivery  
 
#yourbit: Getting involved and having 
your say in designing future public 
services  
 

City region and devolution (JS) 
Corporate property and assets (One Public 
Estate) (JS) 
External relations (JS) 
GM Childrens Services Review (AC) 
GM Area Review (SA) 
GM Adult Services review (JH) 
Health Devolution (EM) 

P
age 104



 

  9 

#result: Empowering the positive 
reform of public services  

Oldham Locality Plan (EM) 
Finance (AJ) 
HR and Organisational Development (AJ) 
ICT and Transactional Services 

 
Please note that the following Cabinet portfolio areas cross-cut the corporate objectives: 
 

 Policy and Performance (JS) 

 Inclusive Growth (JS) 

 City Region and devolution (JS) 

 Business Intelligence (JS) 

 Communications and media (JS) 

 Legal and democratic services (JS) 

 Member development and support (JS) 

 Internal Business Support (AJ) 

 

P
age 105



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 
For the Overview and Scrutiny Board to review the Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 
for the 2016/17 Municipal Year. 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The report outlines the purpose of Overview and Scrutiny, the roles and responsibilities of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Board and Performance and Value for Money Select 
Committee.  The report is a summary of the work undertaken by Overview and Scrutiny 
during the 2016/16 Municipal Year. 
 
Recommendations 
 
For the Overview and Scrutiny Board to commend the Overview and Scrutiny Annual 
Report to Full Council. 
 
 
 
 

Report to OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 

 
Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report for 
2016/17 
 

Portfolio Holder:  
Councillor Colin McLaren, Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Board 
 
Officer Contact:  Dami Awobajo, Head of Business Intelligence 
 
Report Author: Lori Hughes, Constitutional Services Officer 
Ext. 4716 
 
13th June 2017 

Page 107

Agenda Item 15



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
Reason for Decision 
 
To provide Council with an overview of the contribution made by Overview and Scrutiny 
during the 2016/17 Municipal Year as required in line with the Council‟s Constitution. 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The report outlines the purpose of overview and scrutiny, the roles and responsibilities of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Board, Performance and Value for Money Select 
Committee and the Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee, a summary of the work undertaken by 
overview and scrutiny during 2016/17 and an outline of how individuals can get involved in 
overview and scrutiny in Oldham. 
 
 
Recommendations 
 
Council is asked to note the contribution of Overview and Scrutiny during the 2016/17 
Municipal Year. 
 
 
 

 
 
  

Report to Council 

 
Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 
2016/2017 
 

Report of: Cllr Colin McLaren, Chair of Overview & Scrutiny 
 
Officer Contact:   Dami Awobajo, Head of Business Intelligence 
 
Report Author: Lori Hughes, Constitutional Services Officer 
Ext. 4716 
 
<Date> 

Page 109



 

  2 

Council [date] 
 
1. What is Overview and Scrutiny? 
 
1.1 All local authorities with an executive model have an Overview and Scrutiny (O&S) 

function, which was introduced by the Local Government Act 2000.   
 
1.2 Further legislation for scrutiny was introduced under: 
 

 Health and Social Care Act 2001 

 Local Authority (Overview and Scrutiny Committee Health Scrutiny 
Functions) Regulations 2002 

 Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 

 Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 2009 

 Localism Act 2011 

 The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 
Information) (England) Regulations 2012 

 Local Authority (Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health 
Scrutiny) Regulations 2013 

 
1.3 Overview and Scrutiny bodies are made up of Elected Members (Councillors) who 

are not members of the Cabinet but who hold those decision makers who are 
members of the Cabinet to account.  The Overview and Scrutiny process is not 
political – it is driven by the interests of the residents of Oldham. 

 
1.4 O&S bodies cannot make decisions, but instead examine policies, decisions, areas 

of work and make recommendations to the Cabinet.  It acts as a “critical friend” to 
the Council and its partners around the decision-making process and uses informed 
debate and evidence to make its recommendations. 

 
1.5 Scrutiny works to drive forward improvements to the Council‟s policies, procedures 

and delivery. 
 
2 Policy Development 
 
2.1 The key focus of overview and scrutiny work is to influence and develop policy. 

O&S can do this through the following ways:   
 
2.2 Decision-Making Scrutiny - Holding the Executive to account is a key part of the 

O&S role.  This is done through receiving reports at Committee, Call-in and 
questioning of Cabinet Members at scrutiny meetings.   

 
2.3 Pre-Decision Input - Input on draft policies and strategies before they have been 

agreed by Cabinet or Council helps to ensure they are more robust and that a 
check and balance process is in place.  It also provides an opportunity for cross 
party consensus to be developed on issues such as the Corporate Plan, Education 
Strategy and Council Tax Reduction. O&S can act as a consultee in respect of such 
policies and potential new legislation. 

 
2.4 Monitor and Track Implementation of Recommendations - Ensuring that the views 

and contributions of Overview and Scrutiny have been considered when work is 
undertaken to improve services – an essential part of the scrutiny process. 

 
  

Page 110



 

  3 

3 Roles and Responsibilities 
 
3.1 Overview and Scrutiny Management Board 
 
3.1.2 Membership 

 Councillor McLaren (Chair) 

 Councillor Ball 

 Councillor Dean 

 Councillor Garry 

 Councillor Goodwin 

 Councillor A. Hussain 

 Councillor Sykes 

 Councillor Toor 

 Councillor Williams 

 Councillor Williamson 

 Councillor Cosgrove (substitute) 

 Councillor Ames (substitute) 

 Councillor Briggs (substitute) 

 Councillor Salamat (substitute) 

 Councillor S. Bashforth (substitute) 

 Councillor Harkness (substitute) 

 Councillor Murphy (substitute) 
 
3.1.3 The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board leads the development of the 

Overview and Scrutiny process in Oldham. The Board chooses issues and topics to 
look at during the year, be it reviewing a proposed policy in advance of decision or 
considering the impact of a key decision made by the Council. 

 
3.1.4 The Board is also responsible for: 

 Publicly holding the Executive to account for delivering the Council‟s priorities 
and for the decisions they make. 

 Examining any matters of wider public interest (not just Council services) 
which affect the wellbeing of the Borough and its people. 

 Having a statutory role scrutinising substantial developments or changes to 
National Health Services and Crime and Disorder issues. 

 
3.1.5 During the last year, the Chair also continued to meet with the senior managers in 

each of the Council‟s Directorates.  At these meetings, the Chair and officers 
considered issues Overview and Scrutiny could potentially add value to regarding 
the development of Council services, policies and the decision making process. 

 
3.1.6 Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee 
 

The Sub-Committee was established to discharge the responsibilities of the Council 
for health scrutiny functions, receive and respond to referrals from Healthwatch 
Oldham and also scrutinise the Health and Wellbeing Board and its appropriate 
policies and strategies to include the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment. 

 
 
3.2 Performance and Value for Money Select Committee 
 
3.2.1   Membership 

 Councillor Wrigglesworth (Chair) 

 Councillor Ahmad 

Page 111



 

  4 

 Councillor M. Bashforth 

 Councillor Briggs 

 Councillor Brock 

 Councillor Dean 

 Councillor Malik 

 Councillor Blyth 

 Councillor Sheldon 

 Councillor S. Bashforth (substitute) 

 Councillor Cosgrove (substitute) 

 Councillor Ali (substitute) 

 Councillor Goodwin (substitute) 

 Councillor Hewitt (substitute) 

 Councillor McCann (substitute) 
 

3.2.2 The Performance and Value for Money Select Committee considers how the 
Council and its partners are performing and whether value for money is being 
provided for the people of Oldham. It also monitors the implementation of 
recommendations which Overview and Scrutiny has had accepted by the Council‟s 
Cabinet. 

 
3.2.3 One of the most important aspects of the Select Committee‟s role is to examine the 

Council‟s budget proposals each year. This involves considering various stages of 
both the administration‟s budget and any alternative budget proposals put forward 
by the opposition.  During 2016/17 this included two tranches of budget proposals. 

 
3.2.4 The Select Committee also examines the Council‟s corporate performance report on 

a quarterly basis and considers the performance and value for money of the 
Council‟s work undertaken with partners. 

 
4 Where has O&S contributed in 2016/17? 
 
4.1 O&S Management Board: Key Plans and Strategies 
 
4.1.1 Locality Plan Implementation – The Board were informed of progress on the 

implementation of the Oldham Locality Plan for health and social care devolution.  
The Board were informed of the changes in the transformation programme and the 
development with the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) of a joint model of 
commission and provisioning of health and social care for the achievement of greater 
integration of health and social care services.  The Board were also informed of 
progress on the development of an Integrated Care Organisation (ICO).   

 
4.1.2 Oldham Work and Skills Strategy 2016-20 – a strategy had been developed which 

complemented the new regeneration framework and focussed on social regeneration 
objectives for the borough and the development of a shared ownership across all 
partners and providers.  The strategy was one of the three major components of the 
Oldham Strategic Investment Framework and positioned the Council in the context of 
GM Devolution of employment and skills.  The delivery of the Oldham Education and 
Skills Commission objectives and improvement to colleges was highlighted.    The 
Board sought and received clarification on the apprenticeship placement process and 
the outflow of jobs.   

 
4.1.3 As part of the Work and Skills Strategy, the Board were informed of the development 

of the Career Advancement Service which extended the core Get Oldham Working 
(GOW) offer and provided an extended information, advance guidance services for 
residents already in employment to progress from low pay, low skills jobs.  The 

Page 112



 

  5 

service would work in partnership with key agencies.  Members sought and received 
clarification on engagement with communities, what monitoring was in place, 
clarification on eligibility criteria and governance of the scheme.   

 
4.1.4 Oldham Education and Skills Commission (OESC) – The Board were informed of 

progress on the 19 recommendations of the OESC Report.  The report had made 19 
recommendations and focussed on the achievement of two key targets – all 
performance indicators to be the national average or above and all education 
providers to be judged good or better by Ofsted.  The Board were informed of 
progress against the recommendations and progress on the establishment of the 
Oldham Education Partnership.  Members sought clarification on the impact of new 
communities and arrivals and those who had English as a second language.  
Members also sought information on the impact of class sizes. 

 
4.1.5 Climate Change and „Brexit‟ – The Board were provided with a summary of 

implications for climate change policy in Oldham and the UK.  The UK had its own 
climate change legislation which had more challenging reduction targets than the EU.  
The Board were informed of the likely significant impact on energy policy and 
domestic energy markets.  Oldham‟s position was outlined which included 
Generation Oldham which aimed to build community owned renewal energy capacity 
and inward investment.  A scoping study would be carried on for the potential of heat 
networks and the use of heat from disused coal mines.  The Board sought and 
received clarification on how fuel poverty would be addressed. 
 

4.1.6 Local Authority Policy on Academy Conversion and Guidance for Schools – the 
Council‟s position was outlined with regard to schools who sought to convert to 
academy status or required to convert by legislation.  There was a need for the local 
authority to set out how it would work with schools, proactively manage and influence 
the process and maximise influence over the choice of sponsors.  It was important to 
have a policy for sponsors to understand the council‟s expectations.  The Board 
received clarification on engagement with the sponsors and support for those 
schools in special measures.  The members referenced the policy where applied to 
voluntary aided schools and that it should also be applied to the Henshaw Trust for 
agreement.  Members also sought clarification on the retention of influence with a 
school and recommended a meeting with governors. 

 
4.1.7 Local Authority Policy and Process on Free Schools – the Board were informed of 

the provision of new school places which necessitated the establishment of a number 
of Free Schools.  Members were informed of the criteria for providers, approval 
process as well as the degree of influence of the Local Authority.  Members sought 
and received assurance on the selection of sponsors and received clarification on 
multi-academy trusts. 

 
4.1.8 Virtual Schools – the Board were informed on the role and purposes of the Virtual 

School that was about championing the education needs of the children looked after 
by the authority, monitoring and tracking their education progress as if they attended 
a single school.  The Board sought and received clarification on the number of pupils 
and financial implications.  The Board were also informed of the online Personal 
Education Plan (PEP), quality assurance and training for social care staff and 
designated teachers to further improve the quality of the PEPs.  Members were 
informed of the analysis completed year by year and actions put into place for 
underperforming cohorts. 
 

4.1.9 Public Service Reform in Early Help and Prevention Strategy Early Help Service, 
Year 1 Report – the Board were informed of progress of the offer after the first year 
of delivery.  A delivery model had been designed which worked with families and 

Page 113



 

  6 

individuals who had a range of complex dependencies.  The target had been 
exceeded.  Members reflected that the service was working extremely well. 

 
4.1.10 Homelessness Strategy – an update was provided on the Homelessness Strategy 

and homelessness issues in Oldham.  All local authorities were required to take a 
more strategic and multi-agency approach which tackled all forms of homelessness 
and on prevention.  The Council had developed strong relationships with partners 
and levels in Oldham were amongst the lowest in Greater Manchester.  The 
Homelessness Reduction Bill sought to amend current legislation and could have 
significant funding implications for local authorities.  Members were also informed of 
changes to the Local Housing Allowance and the impact on residents.  Members 
sought clarification on the process of court action around notices served by private 
landlords and raised concerns on the potential loss of benefits. 
 

4.1.11 Generation Oldham – The Board were provided with an update on the Community 
Energy Programme.  Members were informed how the objectives were being met, 
progress on installations, feasibility studies and external funding.  The Board 
suggested raising awareness of the scheme through district executives or drop in 
sessions. 
 

4.1.12 Tourism Strategy – the Board were provided with an update on the development of 
the Tourism Strategy which supported the development and growth of the Tourism 
sector in the borough.  Members raised the issue of the lack of disabled parking in 
the town centre and were informed that this was being reviewed as part of the 
parking strategy.  Members suggested the recognition of national days with events in 
Parliament Square and were informed that a creative group was being established. 

 
4.2 O&S Management Board: internal and external consultations 
 
4.2.1  Refreshing the Social Value Procurement – The Board gave consideration to a 

report which outlined the overview of principles of the Social Value Procurement 
Framework which had been introduced in 2012.  This had developed into a Social 
Value Charter as a result of a partnership approach.  The framework had been 
successful and identified by the Cabinet Office as a pioneer of Social Value.  An 
opportunity assessment tool had been developed and ensured social value was 
relevant and proportionate with each procurement.  Social Value had also been 
incorporated into performance monitoring.  A primary objective was to grow the 
community and voluntary sector.  Members sought clarification on contract 
monitoring.  Members raised concerns related to access of local contractors onto the 
portal system and received clarification on health contracts. 

 
4.2.2 Area Based Review of Colleges – The Board were kept updated on developments 

related to the Greater Manchester Based Area Review of Colleges.  The Board noted 
financial reductions to support funding and the impact of continued substantial 
reduction in publicly supported learning and skills resources.  The Council had 
developed a Work and Skills Strategy and was driven by a clear analysis of 
Oldham‟s needs and employer demand.  A special meeting was arranged with the 
Principal of Oldham College.   

 
4.2.3 Greater Manchester Spatial Framework – the Board were informed of the 

implications for Oldham of the Framework which was being jointly prepared by the 
ten local authorities.  The issues highlighted to members included the location of a 
number of significant strategic development allocations; indicative capacity for 
industrial and warehousing and office floorspace; requirement for additional 
dwellings; identification of new development sites; recognition that the town centre 
would continue to be recognised as the primary focus for economic, civic and cultural 

Page 114



 

  7 

activity; and Dovestone Reservoir identified as a key tourist and recreation asset.  
Members expressed concerns about the lack of „buffer‟ zones, commented that there 
was not affordability footprint over the spatial plan; concerns that residents who 
commuted outside the borough would not become part of the community where they 
lived; and that the current 3000 empty homes be tackled.  Members also expressed 
concern about „landbanking‟.   

 
4.2.4 Inclusion Policy – The Board were consulted on the draft Inclusion Policy.  A 

recommendation from the Oldham and Education Skills Commission highlighted the 
need to address the high level of exclusions.  An Inclusion Review had been 
undertaken and captured in the Policy.  The Board commented on the link between 
inclusion, austerity and deprivation.  Members commented on increasing the role of 
parents and were informed that this was addressed in the policy as well the 
importance of the role of the community. 

 
4.3 O&S Management Board: Services monitored 
 
4.3.1 Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) – The Board received an update on the 

service developments and improvements in the Hub. A number of developments had 
been introduced which included mental health services for children and young 
people; expansion of partner engagement and establishment of a single point of 
entry with integrated triage arrangements.  The Board were also informed of 
performance.  Members sought and received clarification on changes in policing and 
key issues around public protection and were informed of a robust relationship with 
the Police.  Members raised concerns of any financial impact on the service as the 
expressed their strong support for the services provided by the MASH. 

 
4.3.2 Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) Business Plan 2016/17 and 2015/18 – 

The Board received the Business Plan which enabled board members to gain an 
understanding of the issues that the LSCB had undertaken in 2015/16 and what 
would be working towards related to safeguarding children in 2016-17.  The ongoing 
process for audit and scrutiny, both internal and external as well as the programme 
of staff development and training was highlighted to members.  The current priorities 
were identified to the Board which included Home and Child Sex Exploitation Sub-
group, Missing from Education, Peer Abuse and Domestic Abuse and Transitions.  
The Board sought and received clarification on mental health issues related to 
safeguarding, the evaluation of the Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub in terms of 
assessments and interventions.  The Board also received clarification on the 
involvement of children and that opportunities were made for young people to 
participate.  The Board also sought and received clarification on support given to 
young people on life skills, resource issues and members training.   

 
4.3.3 Children‟s Safeguarding: Getting to Good – The Board were informed of the 

improvement journey of the Children‟s Services since the Ofsted SIF Inspection, the 
evolving nature of the „Getting to Good‟ Improvement Action Plan and the next steps 
proposed in terms of the assessments.  Members sought and received clarification 
on training which included elected members training. 

 
4.3.4 Safeguarding Adults – The Board were updated on the progress of the safeguarding 

adults improvement work which had been developed in response to the Care Act.  
This included the quality monitoring of care providers; co-ordination and 
administration of the Adult Safeguarding Board; Administration of the Deprivation of 
Liberty Standards (DoLs); and the undertaking of safeguarding enquiries into 
allegations of abuse at care homes.  The Board were informed of legal developments 
associated with DoLS and the systems and procedures in place for electronic 
recording.  The Board were also provided with an update on learning and 

Page 115



 

  8 

development which included a multi-agency training strategy and training for elected 
members.  Members also received clarification on Harm Levels and the investigation 
procedures. 

 
4.3.5 Selective Licensing Scheme – The Board were updated on the implementation of the 

Selective Landlord Licensing Scheme.  The Board were informed how many licenses 
had been granted and the number of prosecutions.  The Board were informed of the 
development of partnership working which included landlords, tenants, Greater 
Manchester Policy, Early Help, Social Services, Tenancy Relations and other Council 
directorates.  The issues referred to officers included gas and electrical safety, 
overcrowding, anti-social behaviour and environmental issues.  Warrants had been 
executed in partnership with Greater Manchester Police and Immigration 
Enforcement.  The Board were informed that after the first year of the scheme being 
paper-based the teams in the designated areas were more proactive.  Landlord 
forums had been held and the scheme had assisted both landlords and tenants.  The 
Board received clarification on the feasibility of rolling out the scheme to other areas, 
the number of applications and assessment of improvements. 

 
4.3.6 Free Early Education Entitlement for Two, Three and Four Year Olds – The Board 

were provided an update on the delivery of the free early education entitlement and 
progress towards the implementation of the extended 30 hour entitlement for three 
and four year olds.  Access to quality early learning was central to the aspirations of 
the OESC.  Members sought clarification on progress with Looked After Children and 
were informed of the development of a Virtual School.  Members also sought and 
received clarification on the vulnerability of providers and the potential loss of income 
and also on the impact of children‟s centres. 

 
4.3.7 Provisions to Tackle Irresponsible Dog Ownership – the Board were provided with an 

update on the progress for bespoke Public Space Protection Orders and other 
initiatives.  The Board were informed of bespoke orders which would be published for 
consultation and specific issues included dog ownership, professional dog walkers 
and dogs on leads. Members were also provided with an update on orders for other 
areas and the borough wide public space protection order.  Members sought and 
received clarification on the Tidy Oldham App, size of notices and forms of 
consultation.   

 
4.3.8 Resident First Programme Overview – The Board were informed of the Council‟s 

approved co-operative customer strategy which embedded the Council‟s cooperative 
approach with residents and services.  The programme had been designed to 
support services transform the way they interacted with residents.  Members raised 
the issue of acceptance of scanned documents and were informed that this was 
being investigated.  The board asked for basic information packs to be available for 
members when speaking to residents and recommended information be given to 
District Executives. 

 
4.3.9 Welfare Reform – The Board an all member workshop on the upcoming Welfare 

Reform changes. This resulted in a number of actions such as highlighting the work 
of the welfare rights team with schools and increasing the awareness of members of 
the agenda. 

 
 
4.4 Motions Referred to Overview and Scrutiny 
 

The following motions were referred to Overview and Scrutiny for investigation: 
 

Page 116



 

  9 

 Community Shop – this item was referred to Board related to a social enterprise 
which has a network of social supermarkets which provided a means for retailers, 
brand and manufacturers to redistribute their surplus stock.  The Overview and 
Scrutiny Board initial considered the report on 14th July and recommended a 
workshop for all elected members and a visit to another community shop.  The 
further report was considered by the Board on 13th September 2015 which 
recommended that risk assessment and cost benefit analysis be carried out on 
combined model for Community Shop and Fare Share models.  Work is still 
ongoing. 

 

 Mosquito Device – this was a Youth Council motion referred to the Board by 
Council related to the installation of mosquito devices and their impact on young 
people.  Representatives of the Board met with representatives from the Youth 
Council, District representatives and Community Safety officers as part of a 
working group.  It was agreed that the Council Policy would need to be reviewed 
and Community Safety representatives would meet with the Youth Council.  The 
Policy was reviewed and updated and agreed in September 2016. 

 

 Street Charter – a motion was referred to the Board related to the “Who Put That 
There” campaign of the Royal National Institute for the Blind which endorsed that 
local authorities engage with blind and partially sighted people to develop a 
Street Charter for the removal of obstacles and hazards from the public realm.  A 
charter was developed with several agencies and representative groups.   
Proposed solutions were outlined in the report which included a voluntary 
register, a review of the reporting system, more effective engagement with those 
who were blind or partially sighted.  The Charter was commended for approval.  
The Charter was approved by Council on 22 March 2017. 

 

 Reducing Light Pollution – a motion was referred to the Board and Planning to 
looking in the merits and practicalities of the adoption of recommendations as set 
out in the motion.  It was determined that the Council were already undertaking 
the recommendations as outlined in the motion.  The Chair of Overview and 
Scrutiny met with the Chair of Planning Committee and determined that a 
workshop was not needed. 

 

 Making Oldham Council More Dementia Friendly – this motion was referred to 
Health Scrutiny and was still in progress.  

 

 Recycling – a motion was referred to the Board related to recycling.  The Board 
were provided with information on a variety of avenues for further exploration 
regarding the more sustainable use of plastic bottles and cups by businesses and 
other organisations across the borough.  Members were informed of the results of 
initial investigations which included drinking cups in Council buildings being 
recyclable, on-site recycling facilities, drinking water in schools, plastics recycling 
and the Courthauld Commitment.  Members were informed of the free water 
supplies to primary schools and an initiative through Public Health on the 
provision to secondary schools.  Members were also informed that the GMWDA 
had signed up to the Courthauld Commitment in October 2016 and that GMWDA 
already had a semi-formal position on plastics recycling and were lobbying for 
consistency in the use of plastic polymers. 

 
4.5 PVFM Select Committee:  Finance Scrutiny 
 
4.5.1 Scrutiny of Budget Proposals – The Council‟s overall budget proposals were 

considered by the Committee at various stages during the 2017/18 Municipal Year. 

Page 117



 

  10 

Initial outline proposals were presented to the Committee during November 2016 and 
they continued to be considered at various intervals up until approval at full Council 
in March 2017.  

 
4.5.2 Income Generation Proposals were reviewed as part of the budget monitoring 

process.   
 
4.6 PVFM Select Committee: Performance Scrutiny 
 
4.6.1 Quarterly Council Performance Report and Challenge – Reports were presented to 

the Committee in terms of how the Council was performing against its key local and 
statutory priorities. The Committee undertook more detailed scrutiny of a number of 
topics through examining the performance report.   These topics included Planning 
Application performance, improving employees‟ attendance, bailiff service reform, 
improved street and environmental cleanliness.  

 
4.6.2 Single Inspection Framework (SIF) Improvement Plan – an action plan had been 

developed to address the recommendations identified by Ofsted and an internal 
service review assessed opportunities for future development of services.  
Assurances had been given that the action plan had been completed and significant 
improvements made.  Highlights provided included peer review of procurement 
services, staff turnover, good practice across teams, use of pupil premium and 
“Framework-i”. 

 
4.6.3 Improving Attendance and Health and Wellbeing – information was provided on the 

employees‟ attendance position for 2016/17 and progress on the Health and 
Wellbeing Programme for the Council‟s workforce.  The position has improved 
compared to the same period in the previous year.  The programme of events which 
were part of the Health and Wellbeing Campaign were outlined.   

 
4.6.4 Income Generation Budget – proposals had been included in the 2016/17 budget.  

The forecast position against the achievement of the target was highlighted.   
 
4.6.5 Planning Application Performance – a report had been requested as concerns had 

been raised and reported in the corporate performance report.  It was clarified that 
relevant planning application data had not been collected and incorrect figures had 
been shown.  The Government‟s targets that had been set for the service had been 
achieved. 

 
4.6.6 Education and Skills Commission Update – the Select Committee were informed of 

the two key target that had been set to be achieved by 2020:  All performance 
indicators to be at the national average or above; and all education providers to be 
judged “good” or better by Ofsted.   

 
4.6.7 Provision for Young People at Risk of Not in Employment, Education or Training 

(NEET) – the Select Committee were provided information on the provision of 
engagement activities and informed of the outcomes of the grant that had been paid 
to provide activities.   

 
4.6.8 Get Oldham Working Update – the Select Committee received information on the 

outcomes of the campaign and figures showed that the programme had been 
successful.  A significant number of employment opportunities had been created and 
filled. 

 
4.6.9 Oldham Library and Information Services – the Select Committee were informed that 

the Oldham Library Services had performed very well compared with other local 

Page 118



 

  11 

authorities in Greater Manchester.  Performance indicators were used showed visits 
to libraries, book issues and computer usage. 

 
4.6.10 Unity Partnership – The performance and value for money provisions and monitoring 

of the contract with the Unity Partnership for the annual period ending on 31st March 
2016 were examined. Key performance indicators and targets were discussed. An 
update was provided on the IT system and related service performance. Recurrent 
and sustainable savings and budget improvements were reported as well as the 
social benefits delivered through Unity‟s support to Get Oldham Working programme.  

 
4.6.11 Greater Manchester Police – The Police and Crime Commissioner‟s Revenue 

Budget and Capital Programme 2017/18 was outlined. The Committee was informed 
that the Police Grant had been reduced by 1.4% which meant a grant cut of £5.7m in 
Greater Manchester. The increase of the Council Tax precept had been proposed to 
offset the budget reduction and support front line policing. Information on crime 
statistics and police resources was discussed. Opportunities for effective integrated 
partnership working were highlighted.  

 
4.6.12 Oldham Community Leisure (OCL) – The Trust‟s position against the contractual key 

performance indicators was reported. A review of the 12 month activity of the new 
leisure facilities in Oldham and Royton was also provided. The Committee sought 
and received clarification on the Leisure Centre membership, the capacity of the new 
leisure facilities against the residents‟ demand, the usage of the swimming pool and 
the school swimming programme and the users‟ feedback on the new leisure 
facilities.  

 
4.6.13 Oldham Trading Group – a progress report on the financial position of the Group up 

to December 31st 2016 was presented. The challenges facing the Group in the 2017 
financial year were also discussed. The Select Committee sought and received 
clarification on service delivery and contact chargeable time, Extra Care contract, 
retention of staff, commercial strategy and self-funding clients, medium and long term 
Group‟s vision.  

 
4.6.14 Public Health Transformation Fund Review – The Select Committee received a 

progress report on the position of the Public Health Budget and the progress made to 
implement necessary savings. The process and reviews undertaken to inform future 
commissioning arrangements was explained. An update was also provided on the 
Health Checks, Young People Sexual Health Service and Smoking Cessation.  

 
4.7 Health Scrutiny Sub Committee  
 
4.7.1  The Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee has met six times since June 2016.  The 

Committee has received a number of reports from across the Health and Care Sector 
in Oldham, but has shown a particular interest in the Locality Plan Implementation 
and the development of an Integrated Care Organisation (ICO).   

 
4.7.2 The focus of the Sub-Committee was on the impact of plans for the devolution of 

health and social care responsibilities to Greater Manchester. Additionally, the 
implementation of the Healthier Together reforms of the provision of acute services 
across Greater Manchester which will impact on the service offer available at the 
Royal Oldham Hospital and across North-East of Greater Manchester, for Oldham 
residents.   

 
4.7.3 The Sub-Committee were also informed of the following: 
 

Page 119



 

  12 

 Teenage Conceptions and the Births to Teenage Mothers – members were 
informed on the refresh of the Teenage Pregnancy and Sexual Health Board, the 
establishment of a Young Parents Team and the decrease in teenage conception 
figures. 
 

 Pennine Acute Hospital Trust CQC Inspection – members were informed of the 
findings of the recent Care Quality Commission (CQC) inspection and the 
improvement process that had been established and which reported weekly to an 
Improvement Board.  The CQC had advised of 77 “must do” recommendations 
and a further 144 “should do” recommendations.  New management teams were 
in the process of being appointed.  Members sought and received clarification on 
the inspection and re-inspection process, patient choices, credibility and external 
reviews and the impact of 12-hour shifts. 
 

 Pennine Care CQC Report – members were informed that the overall rating for 
services at PCFT was “Requires Improvement”.  Several areas of good practice 
were highlighted such as members of staff‟s support and care to patients, well-
structured pathways, established partnership working, facilities that promoted 
recovery and patients‟ confidentiality and the Trust‟s clear visions and values 
shared by members of staff.  The Trust‟s Quality Development Plan, produced to 
address 15 key areas requiring improvement over the next 12 months was 
discussed.  Members sought and received clarification on the inspection and re-
inspection process and discussed how they could be involved in assisting the 
improvement plan, both through this committee and through Joint Health 
Overview and Scrutiny. 

 

 Local Care Organisation and Transformation Fund Update – members were 
informed of the development of an Integrated Care Organisation (ICO) n Oldham.  
The organisation would take responsibility for the strategic planning of health and 
care in the borough and the managed provision of the majority of health and 
social care outside of the hospital.  The ICO had a firm commitment from each 
member of the Health and Social Care Partnership for the transformation of the 
provision of care for local people.  Members were informed of the strong track 
record in Oldham with the development of the Better Care Fund where targets 
had been exceeded and had received national acknowledgement.  Members 
commented on the governance arrangements, budget, the cluster arrangements 
and the impact on local and specialist services. 

 

 Autism Strategy – Members were provided information on the development of the 
strategy which included the consultation process, key priorities and intended 
outcomes.  It would be a joint strategy of the Council and the Clinical 
Commissioning Group and the aim would be for the improvement of both the 
design and delivery of services and supported by working better together to 
ensure improved outcomes for people and better value for money.  Members 
sought and received clarification on access to diagnosis, support, referral times 
and work with the National Autism Society. 

 

 GM Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategy – the Sub-Committee received 
information related to the proposed arrangements aimed at driving collaboration 
across commissioning ad provision as the same time as maintaining leadership 
and an inclusive approach which supported development of the strategy.  This 
was a whole system approach for the delivery of mental health and well-being 
services that supported the holistic needs of the individual and their families in 
the community. 

 

Page 120



 

  13 

 NHS Health Check Programme – the Sub-Committee were informed how the 
Programme was being delivered as well as the performance and future delivery 
of the programme.   

 

 Psychoactive Substances – the Sub-Committee received an update on the use of 
new psychoactive substances in Oldham and the introduction of legislation to 
tackle the use of NPS.  Members sought and received clarification on the extent 
of use and the professional‟s information network.  

 

 Integrated Cluster Working – the Sub-Committee were informed on the new 
operating model for integrated health and social care in Oldham which focused 
on providing a co-ordinated approach.  Adult Social Care, Community Nursing 
and Early Intervention would work together in specific localities. 

 

 Mayor‟s Healthy Living Campaign – the Sub-Committee received updates on the 
campaign and what activities had been undertaken throughout the year.   

 

 The Health and Scrutiny Sub-Committee also convened a Task and Finish Group 
which looked at the review of safeguarding training. 

 
4.7.4 Motions referred to Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee. 
 
 Motions which had been referred to Overview and Scrutiny Board, if health related, 

were subsequently referred to Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee.  These included: 
 

 Making Oldham Council More Dementia Friendly which was still work in progress 
in reviewing the recommendations of the motion; and 

 

 NHS Blood and Transplant Service – work was ongoing with the NHS on how to 
help increase the levels of blood donation and organ donor registration in the 
Borough. 

 
5 Ways to get involved with O&S? 
 
5.1 Overview and Scrutiny has a rolling work programme. The current version can be 

found on the Council‟s website at: 
http://committees.oldham.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=366 

 
5.2 If you are interested in attending a meeting of either the Board or Select Committee, 

meeting dates can be found on the website at: 
 http://decisionrecording.oldham.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?Categories=-13236&bcr=1 
 
5.3 Contact and speak to your local Councillor about issues you feel have an impact on 

your local community in Oldham. Overview and Scrutiny will consider issues raised 
by Councillors. 

 
5.4 You can contact Dami Awobajo on 0161 770 1559 to ask Overview and Scrutiny to 

consider an issue which has an impact on Oldham and local people. This could be a 
problem, Council service or an issue which you think the Council should take in lead 
in improving. 

 
6 Legal Services Comments 
 
6.1 n/a 
 

Page 121

http://decisionrecording.oldham.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?Categories=-13236&bcr=1


 

  14 

7. Co-operative Agenda 
 
7.1 The Annual report contains examples of work aligned to the Council‟s co-operative 

approach in relation to issues that have an impact of local communities.  
 
8 Environmental and Health & Safety Implications 
 
8.1 None 
 
9 Equality, Community Cohesion and Crime Implications 
 
9.1 None 
 
10 Equality Impact Assessment Completed? 
 
10.1  No 
 
11 Key Decision 
 
11.1 No  
 
12 Key Decision Reference 
 
12.1 N/A 
 
13 Background Papers 
 

13.1 None 
 
14 Appendices  
 
14.1 None 

Page 122



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD – 13th June 2017 
 

GENERAL EXCEPTION AND SPECIAL URGENCY DECISIONS 
 

Background 
 

The Chair (or their nominee) is given powers in the Council’s Constitution to give authorisation 
for key decisions to be made under the following rules: 
 
Rule 16 – General Exception 
 
Where the decision has not been placed on the Forward Plan, but it is possible to give 5 clear 
days notice of the decision to be made, Rule 16 allows that the decision may be made where the 
relevant Executive Director has obtained agreement in writing from the Chair of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Board (or his/her nominee) of the matter about which the decision is to be made. 
Notice of this setting out the reasons why compliance with the 28 day notice period was 
impracticable will be made available at the offices of the local Authority and be published on the 
Council’s website.  Any decision made in this way is still subject to a potential call-in. 
 
Rule 17 – Special Urgency:  
 
In certain circumstances it may be impracticable both to: 
 

1. Place the decision on the Forward Plan, and 
2. Give 5 clear days notice prior to the decision being made 

 
Rule 17 allows that in these circumstances the decision may still be made where the decision 
maker has obtained agreement from the Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Board (or his/her 
nominee) or if not available the Mayor or in their absence the Deputy Mayor.  As soon as it is 
reasonably practicable after the decision maker has received agreement from the Chair of 
Overview and Scrutiny that the decision is urgent and cannot be reasonably deferred, a notice 
will be made available at the offices of the local Authority setting out the reasons why 
compliance with the 28 days was impracticable and this will be published on the Council’s 
website. Where Rule 17 applies the decision is exempt from call-in. 
 
 
 
For the Municipal Year 2016/ 2017 the Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Board is 
Councillor McLaren (Substitute Councillor Dean)  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 123

Agenda Item 16



 

Subject Matter Officer Rule 
Applied 

Date of Decision 
and Date of 
authorisation 

By Reason(s) for the decision  

Planning Application 
Fees 

Stephen Irvine, 
Head of 
Planning and 
Infrastructure 

Rule 17 Decision:  4 April 
2017 
 
Authorisation:  4 
April 2017 

Councillor 
McLaren 

DECISION AUTHORISED: 
 
For the report to be agreed and not subject to 
call-in.  The decision could not be reasonably 
deferred due to the DCLG’s restricted timeline. 
 

Oldham Community 
Leisure Funding 

Neil 
Consterdine, 
Head of 
Service, Public 
Health and 
Leisure 

Rule 16 Decision:  24 April 
2017 
 
Authorisation: 11 
April 2017 

Councillor 
McLaren 

DECISION AUTHORISED: 
 
For the report to be considered at Cabinet and 
that the report be considered in Private for 
financial reasons. 

Fees for Adult Social 
Care Services for 
2017/18 
 

Helen 
Ramsden, 
Head of 
Commissioning 
and Quality 

Rule 16 Decision: 
 
Authorisation:  25th 
April 2017 

Councillor 
McLaren 

DECISION AUTHORISIED: 
 
For the report to be agreed but still be subject to 
call in.  The decision could be reasonably 
deferred.  The report summarised the outcomes 
of consultation with providers and the additional 
revenue funding agreed at Budget Council. 
 

Children’s Social Care 
Redesign Phase 2 

Jill Beaumont, 
Director of 
Children’s 
Social and 
Early Help 

Rule 16 Decision: 
 
Authorisation: 25 
May 2017 

Councillor 
McLaren 

DECISION AUTHORISED: 
 
For the report to be considered at Cabinet and 
that the report be considered in Private for 
financial reasons. 
 

 

P
age 124



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 JUNE 2017  
 

1 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

 
 

Economy and Enterprise Cabinet Portfolio 
 

RCR-09-
14 
 

Eastern Gateway Town Centre Land and 
Property Acquisitions 

Director of Economy 
and Skills 

September 2017 Cabinet 

Description:  
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Private for financial and commercial reasons 

RCR-10-
14 
 

Western Gateway Town Centre Land and 
Property Acquisitions 

Director of Economy 
and Skills 

September 2017 Cabinet 

Description: To acquire strategic land and properties across the Western Gateway of the Town Centre  
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Private for financial and commercial reasons 

ECEN-24-
15 
 

Oldham Town Centre Masterplan and Delivery 
Options 

Executive Director - 
Economy, Skills and 
Neighbourhoods 

July 2017 Cabinet 

Description: To update Cabinet on the latest proposals relating to a residential led Joint Venture vehicle.  
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Part A and Part B report 

ECEN-08-
16 
 

Oldham Property Partnerships - Final 
Reconciliation 

Director of Economy 
and Skills 

July 2017 Cabinet 

Description: Reconciliation of money held in OPP joint venture.  
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Report to be considered in private due to its commercial sensitivity and detailing of 
financial affairs. 

P
age 125

A
genda Item

 17



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 JUNE 2017  
 

2 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

ECEN-12-
16 
 

Prince's Gate Development Update Executive Director - 
Economy, Skills and 
Neighbourhoods 

June 2017 Cabinet 

Description: Approval of the main contractor for the Prince's Gate scheme.  
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Report. NOT FOR PUBLICATION by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A 
of the Local Government Act 1972 and  
it is not in the public interest to disclose  
the information because the information is commercially sensitive 
 

ECEN-20-
16 
 

Lyceum Buildings Refurbishment Executive Director - 
Economy, Skills and 
Neighbourhoods 

September 2017 Cabinet 

Description: The refurbishment & remodel of the Lyceum and associated buildings. 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Private per paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 
and it is not in the public interest to disclose the information because it relates to the financial or business affairs of the Council. 

ECEN-01-
17 
 

Queen Elizabeth Hall Executive Director - 
Economy, Skills and 
Neighbourhoods 

September 2017 Cabinet 

Description: To review the options for the Queen Elizabeth Hall. 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: The report will be considered in private by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act as it is not in the public interest to disclose the information because it relates to the finanical or 
business affairs of the Council. 

ECEN-02-
17 
 

Hotel Oldham Executive Director - 
Economy, Skills and 
Neighbourhoods 

September 2017 Cabinet 

P
age 126



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 JUNE 2017  
 

3 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

Description: To review the options for Hotel Oldham. 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: The report will be considered in private by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act as it is not in the public interest to disclose the information because it relates to the finanical or 
business affairs of the Council. 

ECEN-03-
17 
 

Disposal of former Byron Street School and land 
at Radcliffe Street 

Director of Economy 
and Skills 

September 2017 Cabinet 

Description: Disposal of cleared, former School and Police Station, Byron Street and Radcliffe Street, Royton 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: None. 

ECEN-04-
16 
 

Disposal of former Counthill School Site, 
Counthill Lane 

Director of Economy 
and Skills 

September 2017 Cabinet 

Description: Selection of Preferred Developer for Residential Development 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Report will be Part A and B.  Part B is because it will contain financially sensitive 
information. 

ECEN-07-
17 
 

Land swap arrangement with TfGM at former 
Pennine Way, Manchester Street / John Street, 
Oldham [Coldhurst] 

Director of Economy 
and Skills 

August 2017 Cabinet 
Member - 
Economy & 
Enterprise 
(Leader - 
Councillor Jean 
Stretton) 

Description: Arrangements to formalise land occupation with TfGM post-Metrolink. 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: N/A 

P
age 127



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 JUNE 2017  
 

4 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

ECEN-09-
17 
New! 

Business Centre Property Management Director of Economic 
Development 

July 2017 Cabinet 

Description: To consider options for the business centre 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Not for publication by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act as it is not in the public interest to disclose the information as it commercially sensitive 

ECEN-10-
17 
New! 

Mills Hill Primary School Director of Economic 
Development 

July 2017 Cabinet 

Description: Kitchen Extension works 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Cabinet Report to be submitted with Part A and B 

ECEN-11-
17 
New! 

Approval of all necessary consents to progress 
a planning application for the construction of a 
changing facility at Granby Street, Chadderton 

Director of Economy 
and Skills 

June 2017 Cabinet 
Member - 
Economy & 
Enterprise 
(Leader - 
Councillor Jean 
Stretton) 

Description: approval required to apply for Planning Permission at Granby Street Chadderton 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: report and appendices 

P
age 128



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 JUNE 2017  
 

5 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

ECEN-12-
17 
New! 

Oldham Heritage and Arts Centre/Oldham 
Coliseum Enabling Works 

Borough Solicitor 
(Paul Entwistle), 
Borough Treasurer, 
Director of Economy 
and Skills 

June 2017 Cabinet 
Member - 
Economy & 
Enterprise 
(Leader - 
Councillor Jean 
Stretton) 

Description: The implementation of enabling works in relation to the development of a new heritage and arts centre and a new theatre. 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Part A Cabinet report (Oldham Cultural Quarter), 24th April 2017. 

 

Education and Early Years Cabinet Portfolio 
 

EDS-14-15 
 

Kingfisher School - Hydrotherapy Pool Executive Director - 
Economy, Skills and 
Neighbourhoods 

July 2017 Cabinet 

Description: To determine funding and project structure for construction of replacement hydrotherapy pool at Kingfisher School.  
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Private - financial information relevant to a competitive tender process 

EEY-11-16 
 

Grouped Schools PFI Contract Executive Director - 
Corporate and 
Commercial, 
Executive Director - 
Economy, Skills and 
Neighbourhoods 

June 2017 Cabinet 
Member - 
Education and 
Early Years 
(Cllr Amanda 
Chadderton) 

P
age 129



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 JUNE 2017  
 

6 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

Description: Building issues pertaining to Radclyffe and Failsworth schools 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Cabinet Report 
Private for financial and commercial reasons 

EEY-03-17 
 

Oasis Academy – Dining room amendment to 
increase pupil numbers 

Executive Director - 
Economy, Skills and 
Neighbourhoods 

June 2017 Cabinet 

Description: To seek approval of proposed use of Basic Needs Funds for works at Oasis Academy to allow the school to reinstate its 
Published Admission Number (PAN) and to accommodate increased admission numbers in Year 7 classes in 2017. 

Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Private - includes commercially sensitive financial data. 

EEY-04-17 
New! 

Free Schools Wave 12 - Oasis Academy Executive Director - 
Economy, Skills and 
Neighbourhoods 

June 2017 Cabinet 

Description: To note the recent announcement of a new Free School for Oldham sponsored by Oasis Academy Trust and to discuss 
allocation of a site for its development. 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Private - Commercial sensitivity of land values 

 

Employment and Skills Cabinet Portfolio - None 
 

 

Social Care and Safeguarding Cabinet Portfolio 
 

SCS-06-17 
New! 

Contract award: Integrated Community 
Equipment Service 

Executive Director - 
Health and Wellbeing 

June 2017 Cabinet 

P
age 130



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 JUNE 2017  
 

7 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

Description: Requesting approval to award a contract for the provision of an Integrated Community Equipment Service (ICES). 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Report to Cabinet. 
Private: commercially sensitive 

 

Health and Wellbeing Cabinet Portfolio 
 

HWB-02-
17 
New! 

Integrated Drug and Alcohol Treatment System 
Contract Award 

Executive Director - 
Health and Wellbeing 

October 2017 Cabinet 

Description: To agree the award of contract for an integrated drug and alcohol treatment system for Oldham and Rochdale, following a 
collaborative open tender. 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Report will considered in Private under Paragraph 3 due to commercial sensitivity 

 

Neighbourhoods and Cooperatives Cabinet Portfolio 
 

NEICO-02-
17 
 

Selective Licensing Fit and Proper person policy Executive Director - 
Economy, Skills and 
Neighbourhoods 

June 2017 Cabinet 
Member - 
Neighbourhood
s and 
Cooperatives 
(Cllr Barbara 
Brownridge) 

Description: If a landlord fails to meet the ‘fit and proper person’ test the Council must have regard to a policy and decision making 
procedure. This report details a proposed policy and procedure in which decisions will be made. 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private:  

P
age 131



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 JUNE 2017  
 

8 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

NEICO-03-
17 
 

Local Plan Review Executive Director - 
Economy, Skills and 
Neighbourhoods 

June 2017 Cabinet 
Member - 
Neighbourhood
s and 
Cooperatives 
(Cllr Barbara 
Brownridge) 

Description: Delegated approval of Regulation 18 Notification and Integrated Assessment Scoping Report for consultation. 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Integrated Assessment Scoping Report 
Regulation 18 Notification 

NEICO-04-
17 
New! 

Food and Feed Service Plans 2017-2018 Executive Director - 
Economy, Skills and 
Neighbourhoods 

July 2017 Cabinet 

Description: Member Approval of the Food and Feed Service Plans 2017- 2018 in order to ensure local transparency and accountability 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: public 

NEICO-05-
17 
New! 

Phase two approval -Gateways to Oldham new 
build housing 

Executive Director - 
Economy, Skills and 
Neighbourhoods 

July 2017 Cabinet 

Description: This report sets out the proposals for developing the next phase of the Primrose Bank 
regeneration scheme 

Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Private contains commercially sensitive financial information 

 

Environmental Services Cabinet Portfolio 
 

P
age 132



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 JUNE 2017  
 

9 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

ENVS-03-
17 
New! 

Borough Wide Road Marking Refresh Executive Director - 
Economy, Skills and 
Neighbourhoods 

June 2017 Cabinet 
Member - 
Environmental 
Services (Cllr 
Fida Hussain) 

Description: Unity Partnership are processing a tender to award a contractor to refresh the road markings throughout the borough 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: None 

 

Finance and HR Cabinet Portfolio 
 

CFHR-02-
17 
 

Report of the Director of Finance - Update on 
Government Resources Allocated to the Council 
since the 2017/18 Budget was Approved 

Executive Director - 
Corporate and 
Commercial 

June 2017 Cabinet 

Description: To advise Members of additional grant allocations notified to the Council since 1 March 2017 including the announcements 
arising from the Chancellor of the Exchequers' Budget 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Proposed Report Title: 
Report of the Director of Finance - Update on Government Resources Allocated to the Council since the 2017/18 Budget was Approved 
 
Background Documents: Appendices - Grant notifications from Central Government 
 
Report to be considered in public 

CFHR-04-
17 
New! 

Report of the Director of Finance – 2016/17 
Statement of Accounts 

Executive Director - 
Corporate and 
Commercial 

August 2017 Cabinet 

P
age 133



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 JUNE 2017  
 

10 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

Description: The report recommends that Cabinet note the final accounts, the audit reports and other items in the report and refers them 
on to Council. 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Report to be considered in Public 

 
 
 
 
 
Key: 
 
New! - indicates an item that has been added this month 

 
Notes: 

1. The procedure for requesting details of documents listed to be submitted to decision takers for consideration is to contact the Contact 
Officer contained within the Key Decision Sheet for that item. The contact address for documents is Oldham Council, Civic Centre, 
West Street, Oldham, OL1 1UH. Other documents relevant to those matters may be submitted to the decision maker. 

2. Where on a Key Decision Sheet the Decision Taker is Cabinet, the list of its Members are as follows: Councillors Jean Stretton, 
Shoab Akhtar, Barbara Brownridge, Abdul Jabbar, Jenny Harrison, Eddie Moores, Fida Hussain and Amanda Chadderton. 

3. Full Key Decision details (including documents to be submitted to the decision maker for consideration, specific contact officer details 
and notification on if a report if likely to be considered in private) can be found via the online published plan at: 
http://committees.oldham.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=144&RD=0  

P
age 134

http://committees.oldham.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=144&RD=0


5

Date: 28 April 2017

Subject: Forward Plan of Strategic Decisions for the GMCA

Report of: Julie Connor, Head of Greater Manchester Integrated

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 At their meeting on 24 June 2011, the GMCA agreed procedures for
developing a Forward Plan of Strategic Decisions for the Authority, in
line with the requirements of the GMCA’s constitution. The latest such
plan is attached as the Appendix to this report.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 GMCA members are invited to note, comment and suggest any
changes they would wish to make on the latest Forward Plan of
Strategic Decisions for the GMCA; attached to this report.

3. FORWARD PLAN: CONSTITUTIONAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 In summary the Secretary of the GMCA is required to:-

• prepare a plan covering 4 months, starting on the first day of the
month

• to refresh this plan monthly

• to publish the plan fourteen days before it would come in to effect

• state in the plan

(i) the issue on which a major strategic decision is to be
made;

(ii) the date on which, or the period within which, the major
strategic decision will be taken;

(iii) how anyone can make representations on the matter and
the date by which any such representations must be
made; and

(iv) a list of the documents to be submitted when the matter is
considered

Page 135

Agenda Item 18



2

The constitution is also quite specific about the matters which would need to
be included within the Forward Plan:-

• any matter likely to result in the GMCA incurring significant
expenditure (over £1 million), or the making of significant savings;
or

• any matter likely to be significant in terms of its effects on
communities living or working in the area of the Combined
Authority.

plus the following more specific requirements:-

1. a sustainable community strategy;

2. a local transport plan;

3. approval of the capital programme of the GMCA and TfGM and
approving new transport schemes to be funded by the Greater
Manchester Transport Fund;

4. other plans and strategies that the GMCA may wish to develop;

5. the preparation of a local economic assessment

6. the development or revision of a multi-area agreement,

7. the approval of the budget of the GMCA;

8. the approval of borrowing limits, the treasury management strategy
and the investment strategy;

9. the setting of a transport levy;

10.arrangements to delegate the functions or budgets of any person to
the GMCA;

11.the amendment of the Rules of Procedure of the GMCA;

12.any proposals in relation to road user charging

3.3 All the matters at 1-12 above require 8 members of the GMCA to vote
in favour, except those on road user charging, which require a
unanimous vote in favour

3.4 The attached plan therefore includes all those items currently proposed
to be submitted to the GMCA over the next 4 months which fit in with
these criteria. GMCA members should be aware that:-

Page 136



3

• Only those items considered to fit in with the above criteria are
included. It is not a complete list of all items which will be included
on GMCA agendas

• Items listed may move dependent on the amount of preparatory
work recorded and external factors such as where maters are
dependent on Government decisions; and

• In some cases matters are joint decisions of the GMCA & AGMA
Executive Board.

CONTACT OFFICER:

Julie Connor 0161 234 3124 j.connor@agma.gov.uk
Sylvia Welsh 0161 234 3383 sylvia.welsh@agma.gov.uk

Page 137



4

GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED AUTHORITY

FORWARD PLAN OF STRATEGIC DECISIONS
1 May 2017 – 31 August 2017

The Plan contains details of Key Decisions currently planned to be taken by
the Greater Manchester Combined Authority; or Chief Officers (as defined in
the constitution of the GMCA) in the period between 1 May and 31 August
2017.

Please note: Dates shown are the earliest anticipated and decisions may be
later if circumstances change.

If you wish to make representations in connection with any decisions please
contact the contact officer shown; or the offices of the Greater Manchester
Integrated Support Team (at Manchester City Council, P.O. Box 532, Town
Hall, Manchester, M60 2LA, 0161-234 3124; info@agma.gov.uk) before the
date of the decision.

Subject Contact Officer Description Anticipated
Date of
Decision

Wigan
Interchange

Portfolio Lead:
TBC

Portfolio Lead
Officer: Jon Lamonte

Contact Officer:
Steve Warrener

Full Approval 26 May 2017

To be confirmed
Rail Industry
Funding
Submissions for
CP6 (2019 – 2024)

Portfolio Lead:
TBC

Portfolio Lead
Officer: Jon Lamonte

Contact Officer: Jon
Lamonte

To present the
priority list of
future rail
schemes to be
submitted into the
industry control
period
mechanism with a
view to securing
funding.

To be
confirmed

Page 138



5

Subject Contact Officer Description Anticipated
Date of
Decision

Stations
Investment

Portfolio Lead:
TBC

Portfolio Lead
Officer: Jon Lamonte

Contact Officer:
Steve Warrener

Programme and
Asset
Management –
Proposal for
Transfer

To Be
confirmed

Section 48 Grants Portfolio Leader:
Councillor Alex
Ganotis

Portfolio Lead
Officer: Donna Hall

Contact Officer: Sue
Parkinson

Proposals for a
new Funding
Programme

To be
confirmed

Greater
Manchester City
Deal : Homes for
Communities
Agency Receipts

Portfolio Lead:
Cllr Richard Farnell

Portfolio Lead
Officer: Eamonn
Boylan

Contact Officer: Bill
Enevoldson

Proposed
Strategy for
equity investment

To be
confirmed

Stockport Bridge
Interchange

Portfolio Lead:

Portfolio Lead
Officer: Jon Lamonte

Contact Officer:
Steve Warrener

Full Approval July 2017

Page 139



6

Subject Contact Officer Description Anticipated
Date of
Decision

Bus Franchising Portfolio Lead:
TBC

Portfolio Lead
Officer: Jon Lamonte

Contact Officer:
Steve Warrener

Consultation and
progress with
legislation

To be
confirmed

Page 140



 

 1

 

JOINT GMCA & AGMA EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING  
 

 
Date:   28 April 2017  

 
Subject: Forward Plan of Strategic Decisions of the  AGMA Executive 

Board 
 

Report of: Julie Connor, Head of Greater Manchester Integrated Support 
Team 

 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 At their meeting on 24 June 2011, the GMCA agreed procedures for developing a 

Forward Plan of Strategic Decisions for the Authority, in line with the requirements 
of the GMCA’s constitution. The latest such plan is attached as the Appendix to this 
report. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 GMCA and AGMA Executive Board members are invited to note, comment and 

suggest any changes they would wish to make on the latest Forward Plan of 
Strategic Decisions for the Joint GMCA and AGMA Executive Board; attached to 
this report. 

 
3 FORWARD PLAN: CONSTITUTIONAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
3.1 In summary the Secretary of the Joint GMCA and AGMA Executive Board meeting 

is required to:- 
 

• prepare a plan covering 4 months, starting on the first day of the month 
 

• to refresh this plan monthly 
 

• to publish the plan fourteen days before it would come in to effect 
 

• state in the plan  
 

(i) the issue on which a major strategic decision is to be made; 
(ii) the date on which, or the period within which, the major strategic 

decision will be taken; 
(iii) how anyone can make representations on the matter and the date 

by which any such representations must be made; and 
(iv) a list of the documents to be submitted when the matter is 

considered 
 
 
 
3.2 Key decisions are defined as being those which are likely:- 

5 

Page 141

Agenda Item 19



 

 2

 
a. to result in the local authority incurring expenditure which is, or the making of 

savings which are, significant having regard to the local authority’s budget for 
the service or function to which the decision relates; or 

 
b. to be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an 

area comprising two or more wards or electoral divisions in the area of the local 
authority. 

 
In further guidance issued by the Secretary of State local authorities are required to  
 
"agree as a full council limits above which items are significant. The agreed limits 
should be published." 

 
3.3 The constitution is also quite specific about the matters which would need to be 

included within the Forward Plan:- 
 

• any matter likely to result in the GMCA and AGMA Executive Board incurring 
significant expenditure (over £1 million), or the making of significant savings; or 

 

• any matter likely to be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or 
working in the area of the Combined Authority. 

 
 plus the following more specific requirements:-  
 

1. a sustainable community strategy; 
 
2. a local transport plan; 
 
3. approval of the capital programme of the GMCA and TfGM and approving new 

transport schemes to be funded by the Greater Manchester Transport Fund; 
 
4. other plans and strategies that the GMCA may wish to develop; 
 
5. the preparation of a local economic assessment 
 
6. the development or revision of a multi-area agreement, 
 
7. the approval of the budget of the GMCA; 
 
8. the approval of borrowing limits, the treasury management strategy and the 

investment strategy; 
 
9. the setting of a transport levy; 
 
10. arrangements to delegate the functions or budgets of any person to the GMCA; 
 
11. the amendment of the Rules of Procedure of the GMCA; 
 
12. any proposals in relation to road user charging 

 

Page 142



 

 3

3.4 All the matters at 1-12 above require 7 members of the Joint GMCA and AGMA 
Executive Board  to vote in favour, except those on road user charging, which 
require a unanimous vote in favour 

 
3.5 The attached plan therefore includes all those items currently proposed to be 

submitted to the Joint GMCA and AGMA Executive Board over the next 4 months 
which fit in with these criteria. Members should be aware that:- 

 

• Only those items considered to fit in with the above criteria are included. It is not 
a complete list of all items which will be included on the Joint GMCA and AGMA 
Executive Board agendas 

 

• Items listed may move dependent on the amount of preparatory work recorded 
and external factors such as where maters are dependent on Government 
decisions; and 

 
 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: 
 
Julie Connor  0161 234 3124  j.connor@agma.gov.uk 
Sylvia Welsh  0161 234 3383  sylvia.welsh@agma.gov.uk 
 

Page 143



 

 4

 
JOINT GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED AUTHORITY 

& AGMA EXECUTIVE BOARD AND AGMA EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 
 

FORWARD PLAN OF STRATEGIC DECISIONS  
1 May 2017 – 31 August 2017 

 
The Plan contains details of Key Decisions currently planned to be taken by the Joint 
Meeting of the Greater Manchester Combined Authority and AGMA Executive Board; or 
Chief Officers (as defined in the GMCA and AGMA constitution) in the period between 1 
May 2017 to 31 August 2017. 
 
Please note: Dates shown are the earliest anticipated and decisions may be later if 
circumstances change. 
 
If you wish to make representations in connection with any decisions  please contact the 
contact officer shown; or the offices of the Greater Manchester Integrated Support Team 
(at Manchester City Council, P.O. Box 532, Town Hall, Manchester, M60 2LA, 0161-234 
3124; info@agma.gov.uk) before the date of the decision. 
 
 
JOINT GMCA AND AGMA EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 
Subject 
 
 

Contact Officer Description Anticipated 
Date of 
Decision 
 

To be confirmed    

 
 

 
 

GMCA & AGMA 
Scrutiny Pool Review  

 

Portfolio Leader: 
TBC 

 

Portfolio Lead 
Officer: Liz Treacy 

 

Contact Officer: 
Susan Ford 
 

Update on 
Implementation of 
the Scrutiny Pool 
Review 

 

26 May 2017 

GM Strategy  Portfolio Leader: 
TBC 

 

Portfolio Lead 
Officer: Eamonn 
Boylan 

 

Contact Officer: 
Susan Ford 
 

Annual Performance 
Report 

30 June 2017 

 
 

Page 144



 

 5

Subject 
 
 

Contact Officer Description Anticipated 
Date of 
Decision 
 

Greater Manchester 
Residential Growth 
Strategy 

Portfolio Leader: 
Councillor Richard 
Farnell 
 
Portfolio Lead 
Officer: 

Eamonn Boylan 

 

Contact Officer: 
Steve Fyfe 
 

Response to the 
Spending Review to 
support the City 
Region’s aspiration 
for growth 

To be 
Confirmed 

 
 

Page 145



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	7 Minutes of the GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool Meeting
	Joint GMCA and AGMA Scrutiny Pool Minutes 10 March 2017

	8 Minutes of the Health Scrutiny Meeting
	9 Minutes of the Performance and Value for Money Select Committee
	10 Appointments to Outside Bodies and Co-opted Members for Education Matters
	11 Overview and Scrutiny Board Work Programme for 2017/18
	12 Children's Social Care 'Getting to Good' Improvement Plan Update
	13 Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) Update
	Dols Report Appendix

	14 Updating the Corporate Plan
	15 Overview and Scrutiny Draft Annual Report for 2016/17
	2016 17 O and S Annual Report DRAFT 4

	16 General Exceptions and Urgent Decisions
	17 Key Decision Document
	18 Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) Forward Plan
	19 Joint GMCA/AGMA Executive Board Forward Plan

